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 1 P R O C E E D I N G 

 2 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Good morning,

 3 everyone.  We'll open the hearing in Docket DG 11 -192.  On

 4 September 1, 2011, National Grid filed its propos ed cost

 5 of gas and Fixed Price Option rates for the winte r period,

 6 November 1, 2011 through April 30, 2012, and its Local

 7 Delivery Adjustment Clause charges for the period  November

 8 1, 2011 through October 31, 2012.  Among other th ings, the

 9 filing states that the proposed residential cost of gas

10 rate is 79.26 cents per therm, a 1.03 cent per th erm

11 decrease compared to the residential COG for last  winter.

12 And, it also notes that the commensurate changes will

13 occur in the proposed commercial and industrial l ow and

14 high winter use COG rates.

15 Order of notice was issued on

16 September 7 setting the hearing for today.  The a ffidavit

17 of publication has been filed.  We have a Notice of

18 Participation from the OCA.  And, we also have fi led, on

19 October 16, a letter from the Jordan Institute re sponding

20 to a proposal in Staff's testimony.  

21 So, with that, let's take appearances

22 please.

23 MR. CAMERINO:  Good morning,

24 Commissioners.  And, thank you very much for your  patience
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 1 this morning.  I'm Steve Camerino, from McLane, G raf,

 2 Raulerson & Middleton, on behalf of National Grid  NH.

 3 And, with me at counsel table today is Meg Tipper , Senior

 4 Counsel for National Grid NH, as well as Kevin Ba xter from

 5 National Grid NH.  Thank you.

 6 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Good morning.

 7 MS. HATFIELD:  Good morning,

 8 Commissioners.  Meredith Hatfield, for the Office  of

 9 Consumer Advocate, on behalf of residential ratep ayers.

10 And, with me for the Office is Donna McFarland.

11 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Good morning.

12 MR. SPEIDEL:  Good morning,

13 Commissioners.  I have with me Jim Cunningham and  Steve

14 Frink and Bob Wyatt of Staff, and I am Alexander Speidel

15 of Staff.

16 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Good morning.

17 MR. SPEIDEL:  Good morning.

18 MR. HENRY:  Good morning, Commissioners.

19 I am Dick Henry, Executive Director of the Jordan

20 Institute.  And, I am here to make a public comme nt.  I

21 apologize that I did not intervene in this case, because

22 it now seems as though that would have been a mor e prudent

23 way to approach this.  But I look forward to givi ng you my

24 public comment, whenever is most convenient for y ou to
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 1 have me do so.

 2 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Well, let's

 3 address procedures first.  I assume that we're st arting

 4 late because this has been a topic of discussion.   We have

 5 read the substantive proposal.  And, I guess I wo uld

 6 expect that, in the first instance, that the Comp any would

 7 have its opportunity to put on its testimony, and  Staff

 8 would put on its testimony.  What's the appropria te -- I

 9 guess we have several options how to deal with th is

10 counterproposal from Mr. Henry.  Whether it's jus t treated

11 as a comment, whether it's an argument, whether w e

12 entertain the notion of making him a party, wheth er there

13 is actual facts that need to be testified to.

14 So, let's open it up.  Mr. Camerino, do

15 you have any recommendations, thoughts, concerns?

16 MR. CAMERINO:  We don't have any

17 particular recommendation.  I can give you a sens e of how

18 the Company planned to proceed.  And, this letter  is not

19 something new to the Company.  There have been di scussions

20 between the Company and Mr. Henry.  And, so, we'r e

21 comfortable responding at today's hearing to what  he's got

22 in there.  And, our thought was, we had planned, with the

23 agreement of the parties, to present Ms. Leone fi rst to

24 testify on the environmental issues, and, frankly , just to
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 1 be available for cross-examination, and then excu se her.

 2 And, then have Mr. Poe, Ms. Leary, and Mr. Sherry  to join

 3 them as a panel.  And, the plan was to have Mr. S herry

 4 give the Company's response to what is in Mr. Hen ry's

 5 letter.  And, we don't have any particular prefer ence for

 6 whether Mr. Henry would testify -- or, give a sta tement or

 7 testify first or last.  The only proviso would be , if he

 8 went after Mr. Sherry, and there was something we  hadn't

 9 anticipated, we'd want the ability just to bring Mr.

10 Sherry back to respond to that.  So, we're amenab le,

11 frankly, to any way that the Commission would lik e to

12 proceed.

13 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Ms. Hatfield.

14 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

15 It does strike us that Mr. Henry's letter does ha ve a lot

16 of factual information.  And, we've worked with h im in the

17 CORE dockets previously, so we know him as an eff iciency

18 expert.  And, so, we think it might be helpful to  have him

19 under oath.  And, if the Commission did want to g o in that

20 direction, I would be happy to conduct the direct

21 examination of him.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  I take it the direction

23 of the counterproposal is, rather than make the

24 adjustments that first -- I guess first shows up in
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 1 Mr. Cunningham's testimony is, that don't make th e

 2 adjustment and see if the underspent monies can b e

 3 adequately spent, appropriately spent in the shor t-term.

 4 Is that -- am I understanding this correctly from  your

 5 perspective?  

 6 MS. HATFIELD:  Yes.  And, you know, one

 7 of the things that I'm very sensitive to is the f act that

 8 the parties in the CORE docket don't typically pa rticipate

 9 in this proceeding.  And, so, there may be people  who are

10 interested in this issue who aren't here.  And, I  think

11 what Mr. Henry has tried to do, if I understand i t

12 correctly, is do some outreach to key parties wit hin the

13 C&I sector, who typically aren't able to particip ate

14 either in this case or in the CORE docket.

15 So, and that's one of the reasons I

16 think it might be helpful to hear directly from h im,

17 rather than just a public comment.

18 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  And, Mr. Speidel,

19 do you have anything on the procedural issues?

20 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  I think the Staff's

21 perspective is that, as a technical matter, for f airness

22 reasons, Mr. Henry shouldn't necessarily have the  status

23 of an intervenor, formally speaking, but he is a public

24 commenter.  And, we also agree with the Company's
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 1 suggestion that he be able to take the stand and respond

 2 to questioning, since it might be useful for the

 3 Commission's purposes and also for other parties'

 4 purposes.

 5 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

 6 you.

 7 (Chairman Getz and Commissioner Ignatius 

 8 conferring.) 

 9 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Let's proceed

10 this way then.  Let's have the Company put on its  case,

11 and have the opportunity to respond to this propo sal, go

12 in that normal order.  We have prefiled testimony  from Mr.

13 Cunningham, Staff would go.  We have this proposa l from

14 Mr. Henry.  And, do I take it, Ms. Hatfield, that  the OCA

15 supports the proposal?

16 MS. HATFIELD:  Yes.

17 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Well, then, you

18 know, constructively, let him be your witness, an d we'll

19 swear him.  I'm not sure that there's a lot of fa cts that,

20 you know, in the normal course, would require a f act

21 witness, but why don't we put all this on, becaus e there

22 may be some assertions here that would be useful to have a

23 complete record on.  So, Mr. Camerino.

24 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you.  The Company
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 1 calls Michele Leone.  And, while Ms. Leone is tak ing the

 2 stand, Mr. Chairman, if we could mark for identif ication

 3 the Company's entire cost of gas filing, the reda cted

 4 version as "Exhibit 1" and the unredacted confide ntial

 5 version as "Exhibit 2".

 6 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  So marked.

 7 (The documents, as described, were 

 8 herewith marked as Exhibit 1 and  

 9 Exhibit 2, respectively, for 

10 identification.) 

11 MR. CAMERINO:  And, then, on

12 October 14th, the Company filed some revised page s.  And,

13 if we could mark that as "Exhibit 3" for identifi cation.

14 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  So marked.

15 (The document, as described, was 

16 herewith marked as Exhibit 3 for 

17 identification.) 

18 MR. CAMERINO:  Does the Bench need

19 copies of that October 14th filing?

20 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  All set.

21 (Whereupon Michele V. Leone was duly 

22 sworn by the Court Reporter.) 

23 MICHELE V. LEONE, SWORN 

24  DIRECT EXAMINATION 

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                       [Witness:  Leone]
    11

 1 BY MR. CAMERINO: 

 2 Q. Ms. Leone, would you state your name and busine ss

 3 address for the record please.

 4 A. Sure.  It's Michele Leone, L-e-o-n-e.  I work f or

 5 National Grid.  The business address is 40 Sylvan  Road,

 6 Waltham, Massachusetts 02451.

 7 Q. And, what is your position with National Grid a nd what

 8 are your responsibilities in that regard?

 9 A. I am the Manager of the Site Investigation and

10 Remediation Program for National Grid, covering

11 Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, and U pstate

12 New York.

13 Q. And, what is your role with regard to the cost of gas

14 filing that's in front of the Commission today?

15 A. I am responsible for the investigation and reme diation

16 of sites in New Hampshire on the Manufactured Gas  Plant

17 Program.  So, I provide testimony on the activiti es

18 that were performed in the prior year.

19 Q. And, included in the cost of gas filing that wa s marked

20 as Exhibit 1 and 2 for identification is prefiled

21 testimony dated September 1, 2011 with your name on it.

22 Was that prepared by you or under your direction?

23 A. Yes, it was.

24 Q. And, is it true and correct to the best of your
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 1 knowledge and belief?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. Do you have any corrections or updates to provi de with

 4 regard to that testimony?

 5 A. The only updates would be some of the activitie s that

 6 we referenced as starting up this fall in the tes timony

 7 have started.  But no other, no significant updat es.

 8 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you.  The witness

 9 is available for cross-examination. 

10 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Ms. Hatfield.

11 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you.  I have no

12 cross-examination of this witness.

13 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Mr. Speidel.

14 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 

17 Q. Ms. Leone, could you please give us an update o f what's

18 happening with the Liberty Hill environmental

19 remediation and the New Hampshire Department of

20 Environmental Services' decision on the Company's

21 proposed alternative plan, referred to as "Addend um

22 Number 2" on Bates Page 151.

23 A. We have not received a final decision from DES on our

24 proposed remedy as of yet.  A preliminary decisio n was
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 1 received in October of 2010.  The Company comment ed in

 2 January of 2011.  The preliminary decision indica ted

 3 that the Department was not in agreement with the

 4 Company, and wanted all contamination removed fro m the

 5 Liberty Hill site.  In January, the Company comme nted,

 6 January 2011.  We had anticipated receiving a fin al

 7 decision, just based on conversations with DES ov er the

 8 summer, but we have not, to date, received that

 9 decision.

10 Q. Thank you.  Would you be able to provide a brie f

11 summary of any significant changes in anticipated

12 environmental remediation cost projections or sch edules

13 compared to the last year's presentation?

14 A. The costs that were presented in the Remedial A ction

15 Plan, Addendum 2, for the remedy that the Company

16 recommended were $10.9 million, to complete the r emedy

17 that the Company was recommending.  Also included  in

18 that document was an estimate for the costs if th e

19 Department were to require that all contamination  be

20 removed.  And, the estimate in that document is I

21 believe $16.8 million.

22 MR. SPEIDEL:  Staff has no further

23 questions of this witness.  Thank you.  

24 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  And, no questions from
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 1 the Bench.  Anything further, Mr. Camerino?

 2 MR. CAMERINO:  No.  Thank you, Mr.

 3 Chairman.

 4 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Then, the witnesses is

 5 excused.  Thank you.

 6 WITNESS LEONE:  Thank you.

 7 MR. CAMERINO:  The Company calls

 8 Theodore Poe, Jr., Ann Leary, and William Sherry.

 9 (Whereupon Theodore Poe, Jr., Ann E. 

10 Leary, and William Sherry were duly 

11 sworn by the Court Reporter.) 

12 THEODORE POE, JR., SWORN 

13 ANN E. LEARY, SWORN 

14 WILLIAM SHERRY, SWORN 

15  DIRECT EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. CAMERINO: 

17 Q. Mr. Poe, let me begin with you.  Would you give  your

18 name and business address for the record please.

19 A. (Poe) Good morning.  My name is Theodore Poe, J r.  I

20 work with National Grid, at 40 Sylvan Road, Walth am,

21 Massachusetts 02451.

22 Q. And, what is your position with National Grid a nd what

23 is your responsibility in that regard?

24 A. (Poe) My position is as Lead Analyst.  And, my
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 1 responsibility is forecasting the customer requir ements

 2 of natural gas for the COG filing.

 3 Q. And, is that the role you played with regard to  the

 4 cost of gas filing?

 5 A. (Poe) Yes, it is.

 6 Q. And, you prepared prefiled testimony dated Sept ember 1,

 7 2011 that was included with the Company's cost of  gas

 8 filing in this case, did you not?

 9 A. (Poe) Yes, I did.

10 Q. And, is that testimony -- was it prepared by yo u or

11 under your direction?  

12 A. (Poe) Yes, it was.

13 Q. And, is it true and correct to the best of your

14 knowledge and belief?

15 A. (Poe) Yes, it is.

16 Q. Do you have any updates or corrections or chang es you'd

17 like to make to that testimony at this time? 

18 A. (Poe) I have two simple updates.  First, on Pag e 6 of

19 my prefiled testimony, I discussed the impact of the

20 Tennessee rate case and the current situation vis -a-vis

21 the Company.  And, the rate case had been filed i n

22 November of 2010 by Tennessee before the FERC.  I n my

23 testimony, I stated that the parties had gotten

24 together to devise a settlement document to be fi led
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 1 with the FERC.  Since that time, on September 30t h,

 2 2011, that settlement document was filed, and we' re

 3 anticipating a decision by the FERC prior to

 4 November 1st, so that rates can go into effect

 5 November 1st.

 6 Q. And, with regard -- there was a second rate cas e you

 7 referred to, the PNGTS case?

 8 A. (Poe) Yes.  On Page 7, I discuss the PNGTS rate  case,

 9 which -- of which an initial decision was expecte d in

10 December of 2011.  The Company holds a small

11 transportation contract with PNGTS to deliver up to

12 1,000 dekatherms per day to the Berlin Division.  In

13 the rate case, it was determined that the Company 's

14 contract was a non-conforming contract.  There we re

15 certain provisions that the FERC did not think co uld be

16 included within our contract alone.  So, the Comp any

17 went into negotiations with PNGTS to bring our co ntract

18 into conformance.  And, the settlement that we ha d come

19 up with was a simple lump-sum payment, which was to be

20 made in, and Line 21 said "August of 2012", it ac tually

21 should have been "2011".

22 The Company and PNGTS did come up with a

23 settlement, filed it with the FERC, but it was re jected

24 by the FERC.  So, we are back in negotiations and
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 1 trying to come to some conclusion, so that the

 2 administrative law judge can reach a decision by

 3 December 15th.

 4 Q. So, the Company had a contractual right, which the FERC

 5 determined had to be relinquished?

 6 A. (Poe) That is correct.

 7 Q. And, there was a payment negotiated in exchange  for

 8 relinquishing that?

 9 A. (Poe) Yes.  The specifics were that we have cer tain

10 provisions within the contract that the Company w ould

11 have to give up.  And, in compensation for giving  up

12 the flexibility that we had in that contract, we were

13 to receive a lump-sum payment.  The FERC decided that

14 that was not acceptable.  So, we have to come up with a

15 different settlement now.

16 Q. Thank you.  Ms. Leary, let me turn to you.  Wou ld you

17 give your name and business address for the recor d

18 please.  

19 A. (Leary) Yes.  My name is Ann Leary.  And, my bu siness

20 address is 40 Sylvan Road, Waltham, Mass. 02451.

21 Q. And, what is your position with National Grid?

22 A. (Leary) I am the Manager of Gas Pricing.

23 Q. And, what are your responsibilities in that reg ard?

24 A. (Leary) I'm responsible for the various regulat ory

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                [Witness Panel:  Poe|Leary|Sherry]
    18

 1 filings that are filed on behalf of National Grid .

 2 Q. And, included with the Company's cost of gas fi ling is

 3 testimony from you dated September 1, 2011.  Was that

 4 prepared by you or under your direction?

 5 A. (Leary) Yes, it was.

 6 Q. And, is it true and correct to the best of your

 7 knowledge and belief as of the date on which it w as

 8 filed at least?

 9 A. (Leary) Yes, it was.  

10 Q. Okay.  Do you have some corrections or updates to make

11 to that?

12 A. (Leary) Yes, I do.

13 Q. Are those corrections and updates the subject o f the

14 Company's filing on October 14, 2011, which has b een

15 submitted as "Exhibit 3" for identification?

16 A. (Leary) Yes, it is.

17 Q. Okay.  Would you just provide the Commission wi th an

18 overview of what those changes are and how they c ame

19 about?

20 A. (Leary) Yes, I can.  On October 14th, the Compa ny made

21 a filing to revise Tariff Page 76, 91, and 94 to

22 reflect changes in its LDAC charge.  Specifically , we

23 were looking to change the residential LDAC from 6.97

24 cents per therm to 6.94 cents per therm.  We prop osed
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 1 to change the C&I LDAC factor, for the sales cust omers

 2 only, from 4.97 cents per therm to 3.7 cents per therm.

 3 And, finally, we were looking to change the C&I L DAC

 4 factor for the transportation customers from 5.32  cents

 5 per therm to 4.05 cents per therm.  These changes  were

 6 a result of two changes -- two components of the LDAC.

 7 Specifically, we were looking to change the

 8 Environmental Surcharge, and also to make changes  to

 9 the C&I Energy Efficiency factor.

10 Q. Okay.  Would you just explain briefly what brou ght

11 about the changes in the Energy Efficiency factor ?

12 A. (Leary) Yes.  The Company had reviewed the test imony

13 submitted by the Staff, by Mr. Cunningham, and ha d

14 agreed that they would accept his recommendation to

15 reduce its 2011 C&I energy efficiency budget by a bout

16 $1.2 million.  So, the Company has revised its C& I

17 Energy Efficiency factor to reflect that change.

18 Q. Mr. Cunningham also recommended a change with r egard to

19 the residential energy efficiency costs.  Can you

20 explain what the Company did or did not do with r egard

21 to that?

22 A. (Leary) Yes.  The Company did not make an adjus tment to

23 its Residential Energy Efficiency Surcharge.  The

24 Company had done some investigation and feel that  it
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 1 will be able to spend the budget that has been ap proved

 2 for 2011.

 3 Q. With regard to the environmental portion of the  LDAC,

 4 can you explain what the adjustment was there and  the

 5 reason for it?

 6 A. (Leary) Yes.  The Environmental Surcharge facto r that

 7 we had originally proposed on September 1st was 0 .03

 8 cents per therm.  During the course of the audit

 9 investigation, it was uncovered that a portion of  our

10 environmental labor costs had been actually inclu ded in

11 our base rates from our test year, approximately

12 $78,000.  So, therefore, the Company had proposed  that,

13 on a going forward basis, it would need to remove  each

14 year $78,000 from its proposed Environmental Surc harge

15 factor calculation.  So, the Company, if you look  at

16 Page 91, the Tariff Page 91, the Company has revi sed

17 the page to include a reduction of the $78,000.  When

18 we did that, you're going to see that it actually  would

19 become a credit.  But the Company decided that, o n a

20 going forward basis, as we have since I think it was

21 November of 2007, we would just zero out the

22 Environmental Surcharge factor.

23 The Company needs to go back, it's small

24 dollars, and needs to kind of go back and kind of
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 1 restate and fix all its accounting, and has propo sed

 2 that it will, you know, true up and tie out, so i t can

 3 tie all those numbers, and present that to the St aff

 4 and the OCA in its next off-peak filing.

 5 Q. So, to the extent that there's a credit, that a mount

 6 would just be carried forward?

 7 A. (Leary) That is correct.

 8 Q. Thank you.  Mr. Sherry, since you haven't prefi led

 9 testimony, I'm going to ask you for a little more

10 detail for some background information.  Start wi th

11 your name and business address please.

12 A. (Sherry) Sure.  It's William Sherry, S-h-e-r-r- y, of

13 National Grid.  And, my business address is 9 Low ell

14 Road, in Salem, New Hampshire 03079.  

15 Q. And, what is your position with National Grid?

16 A. (Sherry) I have dual roles with National Grid.  I'm

17 currently the Company's Director of Employee

18 Volunteering for its U.S. activities, and I'm als o a

19 senior member of the transition team that's worki ng on

20 the sale of the New Hampshire assets.

21 Q. And, as part of the proposed sale of the Compan y,

22 you've been given some responsibilities prospecti vely

23 with regard to the Company's future organization?

24 A. (Sherry) That's correct.
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 1 Q. Could you explain what those responsibilities a re.

 2 A. (Sherry) Absolutely.  In the event the sale is

 3 approved, I will assume responsibility for all cu stomer

 4 phasing activities for the Company in New Hampshi re,

 5 which will include customer service, sales and

 6 marketing, business development, as well as the

 7 Company's energy efficiency programs.

 8 Q. And, so, given that prospective role with regar d to

 9 energy efficiency, have you had involvement on a more

10 current basis now in the Company's energy efficie ncy

11 programs and planning?

12 A. (Sherry) Yes, just within the last month.

13 Q. Okay.  And, have you had discussions with Mr. H enry of

14 the Jordan Institute in recent weeks concerning t he

15 proposal that's set out in his letter to the

16 Commission?

17 A. (Sherry) Yes.

18 Q. Okay.  Can you provide a summary of the Company 's

19 perspective on whether it feels it's in a positio n to

20 commit to the Commission to spend the unspent fun ds

21 from 2010 and 2011 in the coming year of 2012, in

22 addition to the budgeted funds?

23 A. (Sherry) I'd be glad to.  First off, I'd like t o say

24 that National Grid acknowledges the Company's poo r
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 1 performance in its gas C&I programs in 2010 and 2 011

 2 that has led us to this position where we have th e

 3 underspend.  There were a number of contributing

 4 factors, included the loss of some significant st aff

 5 resources that we were just not able to recover f rom.

 6 We've taken a significant look at the proposed bu dget

 7 activities for 2012, and, in particular, the thre e and

 8 a half million dollar budget, as well as the work

 9 that's in queue this year, and looking ahead to n ext

10 year.  We find it -- we find that the three and a  half

11 million dollar budget for 2012 will be a stretch,  but

12 we believe it's achievable.  And, as we look forw ard,

13 we have committed additional resources to New Ham pshire

14 already, and begun energy efficiency marketing ef forts

15 just in the last two weeks that are starting to s how

16 some promise.  In 2009, we saw our most successfu l year

17 in large C&I gas programs, where we spent $1.6 mi llion

18 on customer rebates.  So, we realize going in tha t,

19 pragmatically, three and a half million will be a

20 challenge for 2012.  We've had lengthy discussion s with

21 Mr. Henry and the Jordan Institute and met with h is

22 collaborative last week to discuss what could be

23 available, in terms of potential projects, to sup port

24 keeping the 2010 and 2011 carryover dollars.  And ,
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 1 while we greatly appreciate their efforts, and we  look

 2 forward to working collaboratively with them to s upport

 3 the energy efficiency work going forward, we just

 4 fundamentally don't see how we'd spend that addit ional

 5 money in the period of time.  So, we'd support ke eping

 6 the budget at 3.5 million as filed or in the proc ess.

 7 Q. How do factors like the state of the economy or  the gas

 8 prices affect the Company's ability to promote th ese

 9 programs?  What impact do they have and what do y ou see

10 for 2012 in that regard?

11 A. (Sherry) It's interesting, and it's interesting  in the

12 fact that we're seeing the same conditions in

13 Massachusetts and New York as well.  Natural gas prices

14 are declining.  Large customers, in particular, a re

15 very reluctant to commit capital to these project s,

16 which take very long periods of time.  So, we're seeing

17 a very difficult sale process in getting large

18 customers to make commitments to these efforts.

19 Q. That said, you referred to the size of the budg et for

20 2012.  How does that compare to what the budget's  been

21 in past years?

22 A. (Sherry) It's an increase over 2010 and over 20 09, the

23 three and a half million dollar budget for 2012.  I

24 don't have the figures in front of me, but I beli eve
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 1 2010 was 3.1 million for the budget, and 2009 was

 2 slightly under 3 million.

 3 Q. Mr. Henry's letter refers to spending on the or der of

 4 $4 million in projects that he has identified, an d he

 5 says that projects he's identified can be "execut ed in

 6 the next six to nine months".  What's your respon se to

 7 that?

 8 A. (Sherry) He shared his list with us just last T hursday.

 9 And, we had a chance to take a cursory look at

10 potential projects, and we're still working throu gh the

11 viability of those projects.  Some of them would

12 require connection to the gas system, in addition  to

13 analyzing their potential.  So, there's no way fo r us

14 to validate the potential on that list at this po int.

15 Q. And, that -- you're not saying that you disagre e with

16 it, are you?  You're saying more that the Company  isn't

17 in a position to make its own commitment at this point?

18 A. (Sherry) That's correct.

19 Q. Can you give me a comparison, if you know, on a  -- sort

20 of relative to the size of the customer base, how

21 National Grid's budget for next year compares to

22 Unitil's?

23 A. (Sherry) I'm not completely familiar with that,  sorry.

24 Q. With regard to Mr. Cunningham's recommendation on the
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 1 residential side, does the Company feel that it c an

 2 spend the full budget for 2011?

 3 A. (Sherry) Yes, it does.  Just in the last few we eks,

 4 we've since reached out to the program vendors wh o

 5 deliver the residential energy efficiency program s.

 6 And, based on the information we're receiving fro m the

 7 vendors and the work in queue, we're confident we  can

 8 spend the residential funds for 2011.

 9 Q. And, so, it sounds like your perspective on the

10 Company's ability to move the residential dollars  is

11 different from the perspective you have on the C& I

12 dollars?

13 A. (Sherry) Correct.

14 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you very much.

15 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Ms. Hatfield.

16 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17 Good morning.

18 WITNESS SHERRY:  Good morning.  

19 WITNESS POE:  Good morning.  

20 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

21 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

22 Q. Ms. Leary, I'd like to start with you, if I cou ld.  If

23 you could please turn to Page 20 of your prefiled

24 testimony.
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 1 A. (Leary) Yes.

 2 Q. Starting near the bottom of that page, you're a sked a

 3 question about the fact that rate case expenses i n your

 4 last rate case are included in this filing, is th at

 5 correct?

 6 A. (Leary) Yes, I am.

 7 Q. Do you recall what was the amount that the Comp any

 8 requested to seek recovery of?

 9 A. (Leary) It was approximately 1.5 million.

10 Q. And, here, in your testimony, you state that th e

11 Company is proposing to include just over 1.2 mil lion

12 as recommended by Staff, is that correct?

13 A. (Leary) That is correct.

14 Q. And, you state on the next page -- or, I'm sorr y, at

15 the bottom of that page you state that you "recog nize

16 that [our office] has taken a different position"  and

17 that the Commission hasn't made a determination, is

18 that correct?

19 A. (Leary) That is correct.

20 Q. And, do you recall what the OCA's response to t he

21 Company's filing was?

22 A. (Leary) I do not have that.  I know it was a le sser

23 amount that they had requested, I think it was on  the

24 order of $400,000 was the recommendation from the  OCA,
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 1 but that would be subject to check.

 2 Q. Subject to check, would you accept a figure of just

 3 over $365,000?

 4 A. (Leary) Yes, I would.

 5 Q. Thank you.  Did you participate in the rate cas e that

 6 we're talking about, which was DG 10-017?

 7 A. (Leary) Yes, I did.

 8 Q. Did you participate in the negotiation of the

 9 settlement agreement in that case?

10 A. (Leary) I guess I would say I was involved.  I perhaps

11 wasn't the major participant, in terms of the

12 settlement agreement.

13 Q. And, do you recall that that was a settlement b etween

14 the Company, the Staff, and New Hampshire Legal

15 Assistance, on behalf of one of their low income

16 customers?

17 A. (Leary) Yes, I do.

18 Q. Do you recall that, in that settlement agreemen t,

19 beginning on Page 11, there is a section entitled  "Rate

20 Case Expense"?

21 A. (Leary) I actually don't have the rate case set tlement

22 agreement in front of me.

23 MS. HATFIELD:  I'd like to approach the

24 witness.
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 1 (Atty. Hatfield showing document to 

 2 Witness Leary.) 

 3 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

 4 Q. Would you identify this document please.

 5 A. (Leary) Yes.  It is the settlement agreement re garding

 6 the permanent rates in DG 10-017.

 7 Q. And, is it a signed copy?

 8 A. (Leary) Yes, it is.

 9 Q. And, what is it dated?

10 A. (Leary) It's dated "January 10th, 2011".

11 Q. And, if we turn to Page 11, do you see the sect ion

12 entitled "Rate Case Expense"?

13 A. (Leary) Yes, I do.

14 Q. If we turn to Page 12 of that document, would y ou just

15 read the portion of the last sentence that I've

16 underlined.

17 A. (Leary) Okay.  It says "The Company shall be au thorized

18 to recover the approved rate case expense beginni ng

19 with the first peak or off-peak filing made after

20 Commission approval of such amount."

21 Q. Thank you.  Ms. Leary, have you had a chance to  review

22 Mr. Cunningham's testimony that was filed on beha lf of

23 Staff on October 6th in this docket?  

24 A. (Leary) Yes, I have.
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 1 Q. If I understand correctly, part of what Mr. Cun ningham

 2 did was he looked at recent spending activity by month

 3 in the efficiency programs.  Is that your underst anding

 4 as well?

 5 A. (Leary) Yes, it is.

 6 Q. Is it fair to say that the efficiency spending tends to

 7 be a bit lumpy, meaning that it doesn't necessari ly

 8 happen in a way that can be predicted from month to

 9 month?

10 A. (Leary) That has been our experience.  Yes, it has.

11 Q. And, is it also true that, in terms of tracking  it

12 monthly, that the Company takes the annual figure  and

13 simply divides it by 12 to come up with a monthly

14 figure?

15 A. (Leary) Yes.  For purposes of calculating the i nterest

16 associated with those programs, yes, we do.

17 Q. And, because of all of the effort that it takes  to

18 enroll customers in the program and get projects

19 finished, that the monthly spending may be very

20 different from what just the monthly number looks  like

21 on paper?

22 A. (Leary) Yes.  That is true.

23 Q. Mr. Sherry, I believe you've already testified that you

24 reviewed Mr. Cunningham's testimony?
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 1 A. (Sherry) I have, yes.

 2 Q. Do you know what the program impact would be, i f funds

 3 were returned to customers, in terms of what deci sions

 4 the Company might have to make about the various

 5 programs, within both the residential and commerc ial

 6 efficiency programs?

 7 A. (Sherry) I think, on the residential side, if t he funds

 8 were returned to customers, we may have to stop

 9 customer projects that have been signed up alread y for

10 2011.  So, it would impact projects that are in t he

11 queue.  On the commercial and industrial side, we  don't

12 see any impact at this point, with the work that is

13 built up and then what we anticipate, in terms of  2012,

14 for budget capacity.

15 Q. If Mr. Henry were successful in trying to get a

16 significant number of projects in the queue this fall,

17 and you couldn't fund those projects, would those  be

18 moved into 2012?

19 A. (Sherry) I'm sorry.  Would you please repeat th e

20 question?

21 Q. Sure.  If Mr. Henry is successful and is able t o bring

22 a bunch of C&I projects into the queue this fall,  if

23 the Company does return funds and then isn't able  to

24 fund them this year, would they be moved into 201 2?
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 1 A. (Sherry) We'll approve the projects as they com e along.

 2 And, as they meet the qualifications for the ener gy

 3 efficiency programs and customer projects are

 4 committed, then they would be either in 2011 or 2 012,

 5 depending on the timing of the customer project.

 6 Q. Would Staff's recommendations have any impact o n the

 7 Low Income Efficiency Program?

 8 A. (Sherry) I can't answer that question completel y.

 9 Q. So, it's possible that it might have an impact,  in

10 terms of reducing the number of low income custom ers

11 served?

12 A. (Sherry) It's possible, if we applied it unifor mly

13 across the board.

14 Q. In response to a data request, I believe it was  you,

15 Ms. Leary, you provided a response stating that " the

16 Company has reviewed the residential programs and  you

17 believe that there are sufficient projects in the

18 queue", is that correct?

19 A. (Leary) That is correct.

20 Q. And, Mr. Sherry, I think you testified to that earlier?

21 A. (Sherry) That is correct.

22 Q. Mr. Sherry, are you familiar with how much mone y Grid

23 has in its approved 2011 efficiency marketing bud get?

24 A. (Sherry) I am not.
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 1 Q. Would you accept subject to check that, accordi ng to

 2 Company's approved filing in DE 10-188, that's th e

 3 current efficiency program budgets, that the Comp any

 4 has, for 2011, an approved marketing budget of

 5 $202,365?

 6 A. (Sherry) Yes.  Subject to check.

 7 Q. Do you know why it is that, if Mr. Henry is cor rect,

 8 that some C&I customers aren't aware of the Compa ny's

 9 program offerings in the efficiency arena?

10 A. (Sherry) I find it hard to believe that -- I fi nd it

11 possible that individual customers are not aware of the

12 programs.  The gas C&I programs, in particular, h ave

13 been offered to customers in excess of ten years.   The

14 electric energy efficiency programs have been bro adly

15 offered for over 20 years.  So, I find it difficu lt to

16 believe broad statements that "customers are not aware

17 of the programs."  There are individual staff peo ple at

18 particular customers who may not be aware of part icular

19 programs.

20 Q. And, does the Company have specific staff membe rs that

21 are assigned to doing outreach and marketing to C &I and

22 residential customers?

23 A. (Sherry) Yes.  Newly assigned since the first o f

24 October.
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 1 Q. What happened prior to October 1?

 2 A. (Sherry) Prior to October 1, National Grid had gone

 3 through some staffing challenges in the last year ,

 4 which we've spoken about prior.  Several staff re signed

 5 from the Company and one staff person, unfortunat ely,

 6 passed away.  And, over time, from 2010 into 2011 ,

 7 National Grid was covering its New Hampshire larg e C&I

 8 customers with staff that also had broader

 9 responsibility in Massachusetts.  And, as part of  its

10 realignment process that National Grid has been

11 undertaking, and in anticipation of the eventual sale

12 in New Hampshire, we're now assigning staff to Ne w

13 Hampshire.

14 Q. So, since October 1st, there could have been mo re

15 marketing and outreach activity in New Hampshire?

16 A. (Sherry) There is more marketing and outreach a ctivity

17 taking place in New Hampshire just in the last tw o

18 weeks, and I can speak to that, if you like?  We have

19 approximately 10,000 gas C&I customers in the sta te.

20 Within the last two weeks, we've launched a

21 concentrated telemarketing and a direct mail and direct

22 contact campaign.  It's been running for about a week

23 now.  

24 In the first week, we generated 50 leads
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 1 for potential interest in gas energy efficiency

 2 programs.  Now, it's difficult to project what le ads

 3 turn into valid projects.  But customer awareness  is

 4 relatively high.  They're very interested in find ing

 5 out more.  And, across the 10,000 customers, this  is

 6 all C&I customers, small C&I, large C&I, medium, and

 7 that activity will continue.  And, we're using th ose

 8 marketing dollars that you referenced earlier to pay

 9 for that.

10 Q. And, does the Company also do outreach to both C&I and

11 residential customers -- or, excuse me, members o f the

12 C&I sector and residents in New Hampshire who are  not

13 customers, but who could get gas service from Gri d?

14 A. (Sherry) Yes.

15 Q. And, when you do that outreach, do you also tal k about

16 efficiency programs at that time?

17 A. (Sherry) Yes.

18 Q. You do?

19 A. (No verbal response).

20 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

21 I have nothing further.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Thank you.  Mr. Speidel.

23 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  

24 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 
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 1 Q. Mr. Sherry, I have a few questions for you to b egin

 2 with.  Did the Company spend all of its residenti al

 3 energy efficiency funds last year?

 4 A. (Sherry) I do not know.

 5 Q. So, you wouldn't happen to know what proportion  of the

 6 residential funds were spent last year?  

 7 A. (Sherry) I do not know.

 8 Q. Okay, then.  Mr. Sherry, would the Company agre e in

 9 principle that if, by the next cost of gas hearin g, in

10 October of 2012, its 2011 overcollection would no t be

11 spent in its entirety, that remainder would be re funded

12 to customers?

13 A. (Sherry) Yes.  The Company would agree in princ iple to

14 that.

15 Q. So, you have confidence that the overcollection  would

16 be spent over the course of late 2011/early 2012,  that

17 remainder would be refunded to customers as of th e time

18 of the next cost of gas hearing?

19 A. (Sherry) Correct.  Any unspent funds would be r efunded

20 to customers at the time of the next cost of gas

21 hearing -- or filing, sorry.

22 Q. Thank you.  And, that would be all for Mr. Sher ry.  I

23 have several questions for Ms. Leary.  How does t he

24 proposed 2010 -- 2011-2012 peak period cost of ga s rate
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 1 compare to last year's seasonal average rate?

 2 A. (Leary) It's about one cent lower than the seas onal

 3 average rate, and it's about 2.94 cents lower tha n the

 4 initial rate approved in November 2010.

 5 Q. What is the rate impact on a typical residentia l

 6 heating customer?

 7 A. (Leary) Overall, a typical residential heating customer

 8 will actually pay about six-tenths of a percent m ore

 9 this winter than last winter.  It's about $7.00.  The

10 reason why is twofold.  First of all, there will be

11 about a $12.00 increase in the base rates.  That' s due

12 to the fact that we have the final -- we finalize d the

13 rates in DG 10-017, plus we also had an additiona l

14 adjustment in our base rates in July of 2011 for our

15 cast iron/bare steel annual adjustment.  This wil l be

16 -- that $12.00 increase will be offset by a $5.00

17 decrease in the cost of gas in the LDAC charge.

18 Q. Thank you.  Has the Company sent out its Fixed Price

19 Option enrollment letter for this peak period?

20 A. (Leary) Yes, it has.

21 Q. Has there been much interest in the FPO Program  for

22 this year?

23 A. (Leary) Yes.  As of Friday, we have signed up 9 ,505

24 customers.  This is really in the same ballpark o f what
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 1 we had a year ago at this time.  We had about 9,8 00

 2 customers.  So, we seem to be about on the same t ype of

 3 track.

 4 Q. Can you briefly summarize last year's FPO parti cipation

 5 and the results of the Program?

 6 A. (Leary) Yes.  We actually had last year -- Yes.   Last

 7 year, we had 11,326 customers participate in our FPO

 8 Programs.  That represented a total, by number

 9 customers, about 11 percent of our customers

10 participated.  And, volumetricwise, it was around

11 13 percent.

12 Q. Okay.  Thank you.  How do the current NYMEX nat ural gas

13 futures prices compare to those used to determine  the

14 cost of gas rates?

15 A. (Leary) We took a look at the NYMEX, the 15-day  average

16 NYMEX last week.  It's running about around three  cents

17 less than it was in our initial filing.

18 Q. Would you be able to provide the cost of gas ra tes if

19 they were based on updated costs and futures pric es in

20 comparison or no?

21 A. (Leary) The Company did take a look at potentia lly

22 updating its cost of gas for this hearing.  And, it

23 actually looked at updating using both the NYMEX,  and

24 it also looked at -- also looked to reflect the
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 1 Tennessee rate case settlement rates that were fi led,

 2 but still not yet approved.  When we looked at th ose

 3 two components together, it looked like the cost of gas

 4 would have gone down around three cents, which wa s

 5 about less than 5 percent.  So, the Company did n ot

 6 make a proposal to update the cost of the gas fil ing --

 7 cost of gas factor for this filing, but, naturall y,

 8 those changes will be reflected in its December t rigger

 9 filing.

10 Q. Thank you for that background.  Approximately w hat

11 percentage of the gas supplies in this forecast a re

12 hedged, prepurchased, or otherwise tied to a

13 predetermined fixed price?

14 A. (Leary) Approximately 62 percent of the Company 's gas

15 supplies are either hedged or prefixed pricing.

16 Q. How does this year's demand forecast compare to  last

17 year's?  Perhaps maybe Mr. Poe could answer that.

18 A. (Poe) I will.  This year's sales forecast is

19 approximately seven-tenths of a percent lower tha n last

20 year's forecast for the November 2010 through

21 April 2011 period.

22 Q. And, do you have any perspective on why that de crease

23 came about?

24 A. (Poe) Overall, we see, in the combination of sa les and
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 1 customer choice customers, that there's a growing

 2 natural gas demand.  But, because of a slight dec line

 3 in the sales percentage, you see basically a flat tening

 4 of the sales volume that we've listed.  And, that 's on

 5 Page 12 of my prefiled testimony.

 6 Q. Thank you very much.  I can continue with Mr. P oe for

 7 the time being, if it's all right.  Did EnergyNor th

 8 experience any operational problems or supply

 9 disruptions during the last year?

10 A. (Poe) No, it did not.

11 Q. Are EnergyNorth's liquid natural gas and liquef ied

12 petroleum gas storage and peak shaving facilities  fully

13 operational and adequately staffed for this upcom ing

14 winter period?

15 A. (Poe) And, they have adequate inventory as well .  Yes,

16 they do.  

17 Q. Have there been any substantive changes to thes e

18 facilities over the course of the past year?

19 A. (Poe) None that I know of.

20 Q. The Company filed its annual seven-day peak sha ving

21 storage requirement report on October 1st, 2011,

22 pursuant to New Hampshire Code Admin. Rule Puc 50 9.16.

23 Is this report prepared by you or under your dire ction?

24 A. (Poe) Yes, it was.
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 1 Q. Do you foresee any likelihood of EnergyNorth

 2 experiencing any LNG or propane peak shaving supp ly

 3 issues for this winter period?

 4 A. (Poe) No, we do not.

 5 Q. Does the Company expect that there will be upda ted

 6 capacity demand charges in the near future that w ill

 7 impact the monthly over/under cost of gas rate

 8 calculations?  I can repeat the question, if you' d

 9 like?

10 A. (Leary) Could you repeat that question?  

11 Q. Sure.

12 A. (Leary) I think it was my question.

13 Q. Does the Company expect that there will be upda ted

14 capacity demand charges in the near future that w ill

15 impact the monthly over/under cost of gas rate

16 calculations?  So, I open that to the floor.

17 A. (Leary) I guess we can answer it two ways.  We' ve

18 already talked about the fact that the Tennessee demand

19 rates that we have initially included in our cost  of

20 gas filing were off, you know, filed rates.  

21 Q. Yes.

22 A. (Leary) And, we are anticipating that the full rate --

23 that the settlement that has been filed at FERC w ill be

24 approved and, therefore, will reflect a decrease in the
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 1 capacity charges.  When that happens, we will

 2 definitely reflect that in our trigger filings to

 3 prevent any over-/undercollection problems.

 4 Q. Thank you again.  How does the proposed LDAC ra te

 5 compare to last year's, Ms. Leary?

 6 A. (Leary) For the residential heating and non-hea ting

 7 customers, the proposed LDAC rate is about half a  cent

 8 higher than it was last year.  For the C&I custom ers,

 9 it's about a proposed half a cent decrease from l ast

10 winter.

11 Q. And, Ms. Leary, what LDAC components expire at the end

12 of October?  I'm sorry about that question.  Stri ke

13 that, "reverse it", as Willy Wonka used to say.  

14 (Laughter). 

15 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 

16 Q. Are there any new LDAC components starting Nove mber the

17 1st?

18 A. (Leary) Well, we are continuing on with the rat e case

19 true-up reconciliation expense.  As Ms. Hatfield has

20 already pointed out, in that calculation of that

21 number, we did include the rate case expense of

22 $1.1 million, based on Staff's recommendation.

23 Q. Very good.  Now, on Pages 20 to 21 of your pref iled

24 testimony, you indicate that "the Company has inc luded
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 1 its estimate of rate case expenses" and calculate d a

 2 surcharge to recover those expenses.  Is that

 3 calculation on a supporting schedule in this cost  of

 4 gas filing?

 5 A. (Leary) Yes, it is.

 6 Q. And, that would be Bates Page 110, I believe?

 7 A. (Leary) Yes.  That is correct.

 8 Q. Now, those rate case expenses are subject to Co mmission

 9 final approval, correct?

10 A. (Leary) That is correct.

11 Q. As would be the cost of gas rates, correct?

12 A. (Leary) That is correct.

13 Q. Thank you very much.  Now, we also have a small  issue,

14 there was some discussion at the tech session wit h the

15 parties regarding the proposed supplier balancing

16 tariff, and that would be Tariff Page 155.  And, that

17 Tariff Page 155 would need to include the develop ment

18 of the going forward 2011-2012 company gas allowa nce

19 factor of 1.4 percent, as shown in this Schedule 25,

20 Bates Page 205.  Now, my understanding is that we

21 haven't quite received that yet, and we would hav e to

22 have a record request to have that sent in by the

23 Company.  Are you familiar with what we're referr ing

24 to?
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 1 A. (Leary) Yes, I am.

 2 Q. Excellent.  Just for clarification, this would apply to

 3 all volumes that the CNGS supplier delivers to

 4 EnergyNorth's citygates on behalf of its unbundle d

 5 transportation customers.  And, we say, after tha t

 6 small record request, --

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Well, do you want to

 8 reserve Exhibit Number 4 for that?  

 9 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  That would be ideal.

10 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Are you going to augment

11 that or ask for something additional?

12 MR. SPEIDEL:  I'm going to ask a series

13 of questions on the stand.  But I just wanted to get that

14 in as a record request to begin with.  So, this i s in

15 addition to the compliance filing that we'll have  this

16 piece of information, but the Staff would like to  have it

17 in advance of the filing of the compliance filing .

18 WITNESS LEARY:  Yes.

19 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you.  

20 (Exhibit 4 reserved) 

21 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you for your

22 patience.  

23 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 

24 Q. Now, I guess we can begin the primary discussio n of the
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 1 Company gas allowance issue.  It's referred to in

 2 Page 21 of your prefiled testimony.  Ms. Leary, i f you

 3 take a look at that.  With regard to this matter,  would

 4 you describe this error as an "inadvertent oversi ght"

 5 by the Company to not update the allowance factor  based

 6 on actual unaccounted for system losses each year ?

 7 A. (Leary) Yes, I would.  

 8 Q. Did the Company benefit or profit in any way as  a

 9 result of this error?

10 A. (Leary) No, they did not.  It was simply an all ocation

11 issue between the Company's bundled sales and unb undled

12 transportation customers.

13 Q. Are the delivery service tariff provisions in

14 Massachusetts similar to those in New Hampshire o n this

15 issue?

16 A. (Leary) Yes, they are.

17 Q. Did the Company make the same error in its

18 Massachusetts gas distribution company's filings?   And,

19 if so, is the proposed remedy the same in both

20 jurisdictions?

21 A. (Leary) Yes.  The Company did make the same ove rsight

22 in both Massachusetts and New Hampshire.  In

23 Massachusetts, we're just adjusting the factor on  a

24 going forward basis.
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 1 Q. Has the Mass. Department of Public Utilities ru led on

 2 this issue?

 3 A. (Leary) No, they have not.

 4 Q. Can the Company determine the individual custom er bill

 5 impacts over the ten year period?

 6 A. (Leary) No, they could not.  Not on an individu al

 7 basis.

 8 Q. Going forward, will the calculation of the comp any gas

 9 allowance factor be included in each peak period cost

10 of gas forecast and clearly identified on the sup plier

11 balancing tariff page?

12 A. (Leary) Yes.  On a going forward basis, the Com pany

13 will include a new schedule, Schedule 25, which w ill

14 provide the Commission and the Staff the details of

15 that calculation.  And, as stated earlier, we wil l also

16 revise Tariff Page 155 to show that calculation.

17 Q. Will the Company include the updated supplier b alancing

18 tariff page in its compliance filing?

19 A. (Leary) Yes, it will.

20 Q. So, if you could just summarize once more, Ms. Leary,

21 the Company's remedy offered regarding this issue .

22 A. (Leary) Yes.  The Company went back and looked at its

23 2010-2011 reconciliation period.  And, we went ba ck and

24 we calculated what, for that one year period, wha t the
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 1 company allowance factor should have been.  Turns  out

 2 the factor should have been 1.7 percent.  We then

 3 identified, since we had instructed the customers  only

 4 to bring up 1.2 percent, what did that turn into in

 5 terms of the gas cost allocation issue between th e

 6 sales and the transportation customers.  So, it t urned

 7 out it was $132,000.  So, what the Company is

 8 proposing, it has discussed with the Staff, is we  are

 9 going to actually credit, through our LDAC, our b undled

10 sales customers the $132,000, and we're going to

11 surcharge, again, through our LDAC, the transport ation

12 customers for the $132,000.  So, for this one yea r

13 only, we will have a different LDAC factor for ou r

14 bundled sales and our unbundled transportation

15 customers.

16 Q. Now, Ms. Leary, the discussions you're referrin g to are

17 the discussions at the tech session, which all th e

18 parties participated, correct?

19 A. (Leary) Yes, that is correct.

20 Q. And, there have not been subsequent discussions

21 regarding that, is that correct?

22 A. (Leary) No, there have not.

23 Q. Thank you very much for that clarification.  Ms . Leary,

24 has the reconciliation of last year's gas cost re sults
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 1 been audited by the PUC Audit Staff?

 2 A. (Leary) Yes, they have.

 3 Q. Were there any issues related to the audit of l ast

 4 year's cost of gas?

 5 A. (Leary) No, there were not.  

 6 Q. Has the Company provided the PUC Audit Staff wi th the

 7 supporting documentation for environmental remedi ation

 8 costs and litigation expenses?

 9 A. (Leary) Yes, we have.

10 Q. Has the Audit Staff completed its audits of tho se

11 environmental remediation and litigation costs an d

12 expenses?

13 A. (Leary) I think they've completed their audit.  There

14 is a draft audit report, but it has not yet been

15 finalized to my knowledge.

16 Q. Thank you.  Were there any issues discovered du ring the

17 audit, the draft audit thus far?

18 A. (Leary) The issue that I've already raised in m y

19 testimony this morning.  There was a case where t here

20 were labor costs of approximately $78,000 that ha d been

21 inadvertently included in our base rate case.  Th at was

22 discovered in the audit process.

23 Q. Thank you.  If any other issues arise prior to the

24 issuance of the final audit report, does the Comp any
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 1 expect them to be resolved similar to prior years ?

 2 A. (Leary) Yes, we do.

 3 Q. And, could you provide a little bit of backgrou nd on

 4 how that usually works?

 5 A. (Leary) Generally, they have not yet completed -- in

 6 most proceedings, they had not yet completed the energy

 7 audit by the time that the LDAC order is issued.  So,

 8 generally, what happens is, they will put the fac tor in

 9 effect pending further review.  And, in most case s,

10 before the off-peak filing, they will have comple ted

11 their audit.  If there's any adjustments to be ma de,

12 we'll reflect those adjustments in the next year' s

13 environmental filing.

14 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you very much, Ms.

15 Leary.  Staff has no further questions for the wi tnesses.

16 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Thank you.  Commissioner

17 Ignatius.

18 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

19 BY CMSR. IGNATIUS: 

20 Q. Ms. Leary, since we were just talking about som e of

21 these proposed calculations and credits, can you

22 explain again this one-time change to correct for  the

23 error in the -- if I'm right, the allowance facto r for

24 system losses that was done improperly?  When wou ld
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 1 that go into effect?

 2 A. (Leary) That would go into effect November of 2 011,

 3 pending approval.

 4 Q. And, you had said you "weren't able to calculat e the

 5 impact on individual customers", in response to o ne of

 6 Mr. Speidel's questions, but you also said it "wo uld be

 7 credited to the bundled sales customers."  Is tha t on

 8 an individual basis or how are you doing that cre dit?

 9 A. (Leary) Oh, maybe I misunderstood Mr. Speidel's

10 questions.  I thought he was asking me if we were  able

11 to go back for the ten year period and determine,  on an

12 individual basis, the over -- I mean, the allocat ion

13 issue.  What we're doing is, we will be applying this

14 credit to all sales customers.

15 Q. And, that's on an individual basis?

16 A. (Leary) On an individual basis, yes.

17 Q. You're only going back, though, for 2010 and 20 11?

18 A. (Leary) That is correct.

19 Q. So, for the period of time prior to that, what' s the --

20 is there any remedy?

21 A. (Leary) Well, for the -- it gets a little bit

22 complicated looking back further than the current  year.

23 A couple issues.  First, these cost of gas procee dings

24 and reconciliations have already been approved, f irst
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 1 of all.  But, secondly, and maybe more important is, if

 2 we look at the transportation participation over the

 3 past ten years, we can see that, from, let's say,  2005

 4 through 2010, there's been -- our participation h as

 5 almost doubled.  So, it's difficult to go back an d then

 6 say "well, let's go back, calculate what the impa ct was

 7 going back ten years", and then let's take the sa me

 8 approach with crediting the sales customers, you know,

 9 surcharging the transportation customers, because  there

10 could have been transportation customers that wer e

11 sales customers during this ten year period, and they

12 would have been then assessed twice for this issu e.

13 So, since the only reconciliation filing that has  not

14 yet had Commission approval was the past current year,

15 we had decided "let's just go back and just addre ss

16 this for this one year period."

17 Q. All right.  Thank you.  Mr. Poe, you described in your

18 opening an update on a decision the FERC had made  on a

19 settlement proposal with PNGTS?

20 A. (Poe) Yes, ma'am.

21 Q. And, I couldn't follow what you expect the next  steps

22 to be.  I mean, I know you said you need to work out

23 something else.  But what are the options availab le to

24 you at this point, given the FERC's determination ?
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 1 A. (Poe) The flexibility that the Company had in i ts

 2 contract is, if there were third party transporte rs

 3 that would deliver to the Berlin citygate, the Co mpany

 4 had the option of reducing its MDQ.  Currently, i t's

 5 still at 1,000.  The settlement proposed taking a way

 6 the flexibility and compensating the Company some

 7 amount of money to have that removed.  Potentiall y, the

 8 Company could go back to PNGTS and just simply

 9 negotiate a new MDQ somewhat lower.  That would r educe

10 the cost of gas overall.  And, we would then remo ve the

11 clause that gave the reduction possibility in the

12 future.  So, I see that's probably the next step.   But

13 I'm not privy to the negotiations, so, it's just my

14 speculation.

15 Q. And, when do you think there might be a resolut ion of

16 that issue at the FERC?

17 A. (Poe) The FERC has stated that they are anticip ating an

18 initial decision by December 15th of this year.  So,

19 I'm expecting that we're going to have to wrap it  up

20 before then, so that they could stay on schedule.

21 Q. And, if there were a resolution by mid December , how

22 would that play out in New Hampshire, in terms of

23 timing and rate submissions?

24 A. (Poe) Ooh, I don't know particularly.  That wou ld be
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 1 the initial decision on the entire rate case.  So ,

 2 whatever comes out of the FERC, based on their de cision

 3 on the rate case, that would be the impact.  So, we

 4 would have to wait and see.

 5 Q. So, would we see it in a future cost of gas adj ustment?

 6 A. (Poe) If there were changes to the rates of the

 7 pipeline, or changes in particular to our contrac t,

 8 yes, then it would show up in a future cost of ga s

 9 hearing.

10 A. (Leary) And, just to add to that, though.  I th ink,

11 just like we talked about with the Tennessee rate  case,

12 if there are changes to the PNGTS, we will, and t hat

13 gets approved in December 2011, we will make sure  to

14 reflect those in our monthly trigger filings.  As  long

15 as it's not going above, generally, the 125 perce nt of

16 the cost of gas that was approved in November, we

17 should be able to reflect and make those changes

18 without Commission approval.

19 Q. Mr. Sherry, a couple -- 

20 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Oh, excuse me.  Go

21 ahead.

22 BY CHAIRMAN GETZ: 

23 Q. Yes.  Can I follow up on the FERC case right no w, since

24 we're talking about that?  I want to make sure I
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 1 understand.

 2 A. (Poe) Certainly.

 3 Q. And, tell me if this characterization is correc t.  So,

 4 the Company negotiated with PNGTS a provision tha t FERC

 5 found was non-conforming?

 6 A. (Poe) The initial contract, which originated be fore the

 7 year 2000, was deemed recently by the FERC as a

 8 non-conforming contract.  

 9 Q. And, through an alternative means, there was an

10 agreement between Grid and PNGTS to effectively p rovide

11 some of that value to Grid through another means?

12 A. (Poe) Yes.

13 Q. That went to an ALJ who said "that's non-confor ming as

14 well"?

15 A. (Poe) Correct.  Basically, the concept of a lum p-sum

16 payment was considered the same as a negotiated - - a

17 discounted rate.

18 Q. So, what's the potential outcomes?  The PNGTS a nd Grid

19 agree to find some other kind of mechanism to del iver

20 Grid, and, ultimately, its customers, the value, or

21 FERC says "Too bad.  You haven't come up with an

22 acceptable mechanism for negotiating that value.  So,

23 there is -- it's disproved in its entirety, or th at

24 mechanism"?
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 1 A. (Poe) Well, I think what will happen is, nothin g will

 2 be disproven in its entirety.  But the Company wo uld

 3 have to somehow bring its contract into conforman ce.

 4 And, it's a provision that I'm sure PNGTS doesn't  want

 5 to have to offer to all of its transportation

 6 customers, like it has with this one contract.  S o,

 7 somehow we have to put a value on removing that o ne

 8 non-conforming clause.

 9 Q. And providing that value in some way that FERC is going

10 to approve?

11 A. (Poe) Will approve.  Correct.

12 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

13 you.

14 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Mr. Sherry, a few

15 questions about the energy efficiency issues rais ed by

16 Mr. Henry.

17 WITNESS SHERRY:  Yes, Commissioner.

18 BY CMSR. IGNATIUS: 

19 Q. You had stated that you have confidence that yo u can

20 meet the residential budget, but concerns about t he C&I

21 budget.  Why are you more likely to be able to su cceed

22 in meeting the residential budget?

23 A. (Sherry) The residential programs are heavily d ependent

24 on vendors.  It's a vendor-driven program.  It's
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 1 smaller measures, easier for customers to apply.  So,

 2 the information we're receiving from our program

 3 vendors are telling us that the demand is there.  On

 4 the large, you know, on the commercial and indust rial

 5 side, we're seeing the demand on the small C&I pr ograms

 6 that are structured similarly.  Where it's

 7 vendor-driven, and customers are reacting to that

 8 vendor contact and the demand is there.  The dile mma

 9 becomes the large C&I customers, where it's much more

10 an individual approach, the projects tend to be l arger,

11 longer in scope to analyze and then, you know, ma ke

12 determinations.  And, it's also a broader reflect ion of

13 the economy, and customers hesitant to commit dol lars

14 until they're certain.

15 Q. Certain of what?

16 A. (Sherry) You know, certain of -- you know, they 're

17 comparing the cost of that investment for an ener gy

18 efficiency measure, versus a hiring decision or

19 something else within their facility.  And, at th e same

20 time, gas costs are down.  So, the savings are no t

21 quite as achievable, based on, you know, their fu el

22 budget.

23 Q. You said that you've been taking a look at the list of

24 possible projects the Jordan Institute had brough t
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 1 forward.  Were those projects customers that you --

 2 your company had already been in touch with?

 3 A. (Sherry) Some of them were, yes.

 4 Q. Were some, I take it then, that you had not yet  had any

 5 contact with?  

 6 A. (Sherry) Some of them -- well, the list was a m ixture

 7 of projects.  Some customers, we were already awa re of

 8 the projects, others were much more in the format ive

 9 stage.  Some of the customers were not connected to the

10 gas system yet.  So, it's a combination of a gas

11 connection and then potential energy efficiency w ork.  

12 Q. Do you know, is there a standard you apply on a verage

13 lead time for a large customer, between the early  leads

14 and how long it takes to the point of actual maki ng the

15 investment and undertaking the efficiency measure s?

16 A. (Sherry) Based on my own experience, and I've b een

17 doing this for over 20 years, a large commercial and

18 industrial customer project can go from three to six

19 months in the formative stage, six to nine months  to

20 make a decision, and then any time beyond that to

21 actually get construction.  But it all depends on  the

22 size and scope of the project.  Some prescriptive

23 measures can happen very quickly.  But a more cus tom

24 measure, a more comprehensive approach will take a long

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                [Witness Panel:  Poe|Leary|Sherry]
    58

 1 period of time.

 2 Q. Do the changes -- you said there were changes i n

 3 staffing since October 1st for energy efficiency.   Are

 4 there changes in what the staff are assigned to d o as

 5 well or is it just the identification of people?

 6 A. (Sherry) We've identified and placed in New Ham pshire

 7 staff that are solely focused on New Hampshire.  So,

 8 similar roles and responsibilities maybe to those  they

 9 had before, in terms of energy efficiency program

10 marketing and delivery, but the individuals now i n

11 place only have responsibility for New Hampshire.

12 Q. Who has been assigned for New Hampshire?

13 A. (Sherry) Well, I'll introduce Mr. Eric Stanley,  who's

14 sitting in the room.  He's our new Energy Efficie ncy

15 Program Manager designate going forward for the

16 Company.  We have a gentleman named Robert McLean , who

17 is working in our large C&I programs, M-c-L-e-a-n .  An

18 individual named Margaret Curran, C-u-r-r-a-n, wh o's

19 our Residential Program Manager for both gas and

20 electric residential programs.  She's been managi ng

21 those programs for a number -- some period of tim e now,

22 and she's now focused just on New Hampshire.  We also

23 have a gentleman named Christopher Kintz, K-i-n-t -z,

24 who's a technical engineer, with a specialty on
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 1 electric energy efficiency measures, but he'll al so be

 2 doing work on the gas programs.  And, we have sev eral

 3 more vacancies we anticipate filling in the event  the

 4 sale is concluded.

 5 Q. Your statement on the stand to Mr. Speidel that  you

 6 would agree to a refund of any overcollected amou nts, I

 7 don't remember the details here, if, by the end - - by

 8 October 2012, if any of the 2011 monies have not been

 9 expended -- any 2011 overcollection had not been

10 expended, you would return to customers, is that

11 correct?

12 A. (Sherry) That's correct.

13 Q. Is that a commitment on the residential side on ly or

14 for all programs?

15 A. (Sherry) That particular discussion, my underst anding

16 with Staff, was just related to the residential

17 programs.

18 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Okay.

19 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes, that's correct,

20 Commissioner.

21 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  I have no

22 other questions.  Thank you.

23 BY CHAIRMAN GETZ: 

24 Q. I want to try and make sure I understand some o f these
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 1 C&I energy efficiency numbers.  Because I'm looki ng at

 2 what's in the order of notice and what's in

 3 Mr. Cunningham's testimony, and then also Mr. Hen ry's

 4 letter, and something you said earlier, Mr. Sherr y.

 5 So, the proposed energy efficiency conservation c harge

 6 for C&I is 2.98 cents per therm, as I understand it?

 7 A. (Leary) That's what we initially are requesting , yes.

 8 Q. And, that's a very slight decrease from the cur rent

 9 rate, at least that's what it says in the order o f

10 notice?

11 A. (Leary) Let me double check.

12 Q. Says it's a decrease of what would be 0.08 cent s per

13 therm from the current rate.  It's on Page 2 of t he

14 order of notice.  And have we got it correct or - - It's

15 right in the middle of Page 2 of the order of not ice.

16 A. (Leary) What was the amount again please?

17 Q. Well, I'm looking here, it says "the proposed c harge is

18 2.98 cents per therm."

19 A. (Leary) Yes.  

20 Q. And, then, it says "a decrease of 0.08 cents pe r therm

21 from the current rate."

22 A. (Leary) That is correct.

23 Q. And, I guess Mr. Sherry had said earlier that t he

24 calendar year budget was, for 2012, would be an
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 1 increase over 2011.  So, the decrease there refle cts an

 2 underspending from previous years or, you know, w hy is

 3 the 2010 money, which Mr. Henry I guess identifie d as

 4 $1.3 million, so that $1.3 million was used as an

 5 offset to the 2012 budget?

 6 A. (Leary) That is correct.

 7 Q. And, then, you spoke, Mr. Sherry, of a "$3.5 mi llion

 8 budget" for --

 9 A. (Sherry) For 2012.

10 Q. -- 2012.  And, I'm looking at Page 6 of

11 Mr. Cunningham's testimony, where he proposes an

12 adjustment.  On Line 13, he has a figure of

13 "$3,032,213".  

14 A. (Sherry) That would be the 2011 budget.  Page 1 1,

15 Commissioner?

16 Q. Page 6 of Mr. Cunningham's testimony, at Line 1 3.  We

17 haven't marked any of this yet, but we'll get the re.

18 I'm just trying to make sure I'm comparing apples  to

19 apples.

20 A. (Sherry) I believe that's the 2011 C&I budget.  The

21 figure represented on Page 6, Line 13, of Cunning ham's

22 testimony, the "3,032,213", I believe was the 201 1 C&I

23 budget, subject to confirmation.

24 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.
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 1 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  That particular

 2 figure, I believe, Mr. Chairman, you can have a c ross

 3 reference.  Under Exhibit 3, the October 14th fil ing, and

 4 under Bates Page 120, you have an Energy Efficien cy

 5 Programs budget summary for November 2011 through  October

 6 31st, 2012.

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Well, let me

 8 follow up then, when we get to Mr. Cunningham on that

 9 issue.  Yes.  I guess I'm going to have to follow  up with

10 Mr. Cunningham on the rest of this then.  Is ther e

11 anything -- Ms. Hatfield?

12 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

13 In just looking at the Company's revised pages th at

14 Attorney Speidel just referred to on October 14th , looks

15 like Bates Page 120 is the Residential Efficiency  Charge

16 figures, and it's Bates Page 121 that would show the C&I.

17 So that the reduction that you were getting at I think is

18 the bottom number there, the 1.74 cents for C&I.

19 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Well, I'll pursue

20 this further with Mr. Cunningham.  Anything for t he

21 witnesses, Mr. Camerino?

22 MR. CAMERINO:  No thank you.

23 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Other than you reserve

24 your right to come back?
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 1 MR. CAMERINO:  Hopefully not, but, yes.

 2 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Then, the

 3 witnesses are excused.  Thank you.  Mr. Camerino,  I take

 4 it that's all your witnesses?

 5 MR. CAMERINO:  Yes.  That completes our

 6 case.

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Well, let's take a very

 8 brief recess, and then we'll turn to Mr. Cunningh am's

 9 testimony when we come back.

10 (Recess taken at 11:58 a.m. and the 

11 hearing reconvened at 12:12 p.m.) 

12 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  We're back on the

13 record.  Turning to Staff.  Mr. Speidel.

14 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr.

15 Chairman.  Staff would like to call Mr. James Cun ningham

16 of the Staff to the stand.  And, if we could have  him

17 sworn, we'd like to ask him a few basic questions  about

18 his testimony and some other small matters relate d to

19 that.

20 (Whereupon James J. Cunningham, Jr., was 

21 duly sworn by the Court Reporter.) 

22 JAMES J. CUNNINGHAM, JR., SWORN 

23  DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 
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 1 Q. Mr. Cunningham, could you please summarize your

 2 testimony filed on October the 6th on this docket .

 3 A. Yes.  I'd be glad to.  The testimony that I fil ed on

 4 October 6th provides a recommendation and an anal ysis

 5 with it to recommend a refund for the residential  LDAC

 6 and the C&I LDAC of approximately $1.2 million.  The

 7 reason for the refund recommendation for both LDA Cs was

 8 due to what I saw was an underspending.  And, the

 9 analysis attached to my testimony and schedules

10 attached to my testimony indicate, for the period  of

11 August, September, and October, the test period t hat I

12 analyzed, it appears as though the Company would not be

13 able to achieve its budgeted level of expenditure s in

14 those three months, and that was the basis for my

15 recommendation to reduce the LDAC, to reflect a r efund

16 of 1.2 million for each of the two LDACs.

17 Q. Now, Mr. Cunningham, what is your job descripti on here

18 at the Utilities Commission?

19 A. Utility Analyst, working in the Electric Divisi on.

20 Q. And, you have expertise related to energy effic iency

21 programs, correct?

22 A. Yes.  When the Commission restarted the energy

23 efficiency programs in 2001, I was the analyst on  the

24 case.  And, we've been running multiyear energy
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 1 efficiency programs on the gas side since that ti me.

 2 Q. Thank you.  If you may, as an initial matter, c ould you

 3 please refer to Pages 5 and 6 of your prefiled

 4 testimony.

 5 A. Okay.

 6 Q. And, you can see that, at the bottom of Page 5,  into

 7 the beginning of Page 6, there's a reference to c ertain

 8 residential LDAC calculations, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And, you base these on the residential LDAC

11 calculations submitted by the Company as part of its

12 filing, correct?

13 A. Yes, I did.

14 Q. On Bates Page 120?

15 A. Yes.  That actually is a -- one correction I'd like to

16 make to my testimony.  On Page 6 that you just re ferred

17 to, the reference to the "residential LDAC" at th e top

18 of that page, Page Bates 120, that's correct.  An d,

19 that ties in with Bates 120 in the filing, the or iginal

20 filing.

21 Q. Exhibit 1, correct?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. Yes.

24 A. I believe that's the exhibit.  And, however, I noticed,
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 1 on Page 13, I referenced the "C&I LDAC" and I use d the

 2 same Bates page reference, which was incorrect.  So, I

 3 would like to correct the record and show that Li ne 13

 4 should say "Bates 121".

 5 Q. Line 13 of Page 6 of your prefiled testimony?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And, that, in turn, ties into the tables provid ed by

 8 the Company as part of Exhibit 3, dated October t he

 9 14th.  You have the calculation of the residentia l

10 LDAC, the updates on Pages 120 and 121, Bates pag es

11 120, 121, of Exhibit 3; 120 being the residential

12 figures and 121 being the commercial/industrial

13 figures, is that correct?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And, you can see, if you will, within the updat ed

16 filing, Mr. Cunningham, that the line item readin g

17 "Total Charges" has been adjusted, correct, by th e

18 Company?

19 A. Line item for "Total Charges" in my testimony o r in the

20 Exhibit 3?

21 Q. Exhibit 3.

22 A. In Exhibit 3.  Yes.  The Page 120, Bates 120, s hows

23 charges for the residential program.

24 Q. You mean "121", correct, for the commercial/ind ustrial?
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 1 A. C&I, okay.

 2 Q. Yes.

 3 A. Refer to 121, yes.  The charges in the block fo r the

 4 C&I conservation charge shows a total amount of c harges

 5 of 1.769 million, 1.8 million.  And, that ties to  the

 6 Line 15 in my testimony, adjusted C&I LDAC,

 7 1.823 million.  The numbers are slightly differen t.

 8 I'm not sure exactly why perhaps the calculation of

 9 interest.  But, essentially, what we're saying he re is

10 that, if you were to start with the beginning bal ance

11 and remove $1.2 million from it, you'd get to

12 1.8 million.  I had recommended the removal of

13 $1.2 million in the calculation of the C&I LDAC.  The

14 Company's Exhibit 3 revised filing adopted that

15 recommendation, and includes the $1.2 million ref und

16 for the C&I LDAC.

17 Q. Excellent.  Thank you very much, Mr. Cunningham .  Now,

18 have you heard Mr. Sherry's discussion on behalf of the

19 Company of the Company's acceptance of a potentia l

20 remedy for residential monies received during 201 1,

21 carried forward in an overcollection for 2012?

22 A. Yes, I did.  I respect the Company's opinion on  its

23 ability to serve customers in the queue.  And, I found

24 his analysis persuasive.
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 1 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you very much.  I

 2 have no further questions for Mr. Cunningham.

 3 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Ms. Hatfield.

 4 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr.

 5 Cunningham.  Good afternoon, Mr. Cunningham.

 6 WITNESS CUNNINGHAM:  Good afternoon.

 7 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

 8 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

 9 Q. When you developed your testimony that was file d on

10 October 6th, your recommendation was to credit ba ck

11 amounts both to residential and commercial/indust rial

12 customers, is that right?

13 A. Yes.  That's correct.

14 Q. Did you review the Company's approved program p lan for

15 2011 when you made that recommendation?

16 A. The program plan in Docket DE 10-188 --

17 Q. Yes.

18 A. -- you're referring?  Not fully, because the fi ling for

19 changes had just basically come in September 30th .  So,

20 I reviewed the filing at September 30th for 2012.   And,

21 in that context, I could see the projected expend itures

22 in that filing were consistent with the projected

23 expenditures in the LDAC filing.  But, beyond tha t, I

24 didn't analyze it any further.
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 1 Q. So, last year's filing in DE 10-188 that has al l of the

 2 details about the programs and the budgets for ea ch

 3 particular offering, you didn't review those?

 4 A. Not for the purpose of this analysis.

 5 Q. Did you review the GDS Efficiency Potential Stu dy that

 6 the Commission commissioned a few years ago to st udy

 7 the efficiency potential in the state when you ma de

 8 your analysis?

 9 A. Not in the context of this LDAC analysis, no.

10 Q. Did you conduct any outreach to any customers o r groups

11 that represent customers in your -- in developing  your

12 position?

13 A. No.  Maybe I should stop and clarify the analys is that

14 I provided in my testimony.  The analysis was pre tty

15 limited.  It was limited solely to the three mont hs

16 August, September, and October.  "How well did th e

17 Company project to -- project its expenditures ba sed on

18 its actual performance?"  It was clear to me that  the

19 performance that the Company had achieved, as

20 represented by my testimony at Schedule JJC-2, it  was

21 apparent to me that the Company could achieve spe nding

22 based on its actual performance of, let's refer t o C&I,

23 the C&I Schedule 3, JJC-3 in my testimony.  Based  on my

24 analysis of the performance that the Company had
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 1 achieved in the prior months, I concluded that th e

 2 Company could spend $63,745 in August; 156,941 in

 3 September; and 173,017 in October.  That was base d on

 4 the performance that the Company had actually ach ieved

 5 in the prior months.

 6 The forecast that the Company put

 7 forward, however, was 544,674 in each of those th ree

 8 months.  So, based on what I saw as company perfo rmance

 9 over the recent prior months, it looked like the

10 Company could not achieve the level of forecasted

11 proposed of 545,000.  So, on that basis alone, I

12 developed a short piece of testimony to inform th e

13 Commission that it appeared as though, solely bas ed on

14 the scorecard, so to speak, the Company would not  be

15 able to achieve its forecasted level of spending.

16 Q. Would it be fair to characterize your analysis as an

17 "accounting analysis"?

18 A. "Accounting analysis"?  For purposes of calcula ting the

19 LDAC, I would say perhaps it's a "reconciliation

20 analysis".  And, when we look at reconciliation

21 analyses, we look at the spending that's projecte d.

22 So, in that context, I looked at the spending tha t was

23 being projected by the Company, and it looked lik e the

24 Company was a little bit too aggressive on its
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 1 anticipated spending of 544,000 each month, in th e next

 2 three months.

 3 Q. What mix of measures or what particular program s did

 4 you factor in when you prepared your projection f or

 5 those three months?

 6 A. Again, it was not based on any particular analy sis of

 7 measures.  It was based solely on the analysis of  the

 8 scorecard and what the Company was able to achiev e in

 9 the recent prior months.

10 Q. Did you hear Ms. Leary testify earlier and agre e with

11 me that sometimes efficiency spending is a bit lu mpy,

12 in that it's not predictable from month to month?

13 A. Yes, I recall that.

14 Q. Do you also recall her testifying that the mont hly

15 figures that the Company projects are really just  them

16 trying to take the 12 months of spending and allo cate

17 it over the months of the year?

18 A. Yes.  Yes, I recall that.  And, I think that's where my

19 analysis differed a little bit from the Company's .  The

20 Company was trying to fit into the three months,

21 August, September, and October time frame, spendi ng

22 that would achieve the Commission approved budget  for

23 the 12 month period.  But, given the actual exper ience

24 that the Company was underrunning in its spending  of
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 1 these programs, it appeared as though they were n ot

 2 going to be able to achieve the level of spending  that

 3 the Commission had approved.  So, because of that , my

 4 analysis picked out those three months, and tried  to

 5 determine, even given the lumpiness of the foreca st,

 6 what an appropriate forecast would be, rather tha n the

 7 forecast put forward by the Company of 544,674 ea ch

 8 month.

 9 So, what I did was I tried to

10 incorporate the actual lumpiness as experienced b y the

11 Company in 2010 into the forecast that I develope d for

12 August, September, and October.  And, I did that by

13 looking at the three months August, September, an d

14 October, in 2010, and I found that lumpiness that  you

15 mentioned.  For instance on Schedule JJC-4 of my

16 testimony, I had, for August, calculated 11 perce nt of

17 the spending through July as being what was actua lly

18 expended in August of 2010.  Then, it jumped to

19 27 percent in September, 147,174, on JJC-4, the a ctual

20 spending in September was 27 percent of the year to

21 date July spending, and then it increased a littl e bit

22 more in October, to 162,000.

23 So, when I recognized that in my

24 analysis, I recognized it by taking the Company's
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 1 actual spending through July, columns to the righ t,

 2 under "Staff Recommended Spending", and I determi ned

 3 that, through July, the Company actually spent 58 3,650.

 4 So, there was no concern about that level of spen ding,

 5 it was what was reported to the Commission.  Howe ver,

 6 in terms of the lumpiness that you mentioned, I a pplied

 7 the factors of 11 percent, 27 percent, and 30 per cent,

 8 respectively, to arrive at a forecast for August,

 9 September, and October.

10 Q. And, did you hear -- or, excuse me, your counse l,

11 Attorney Speidel, asked you about the Company's

12 willingness or their desire to retain the residen tial

13 funds and their belief that there are sufficient

14 projects in the queue.  Do you recall that?

15 A. Yes, I do.

16 Q. And, I think you testified that you "found the

17 Company's analysis persuasive", is that right?

18 A. Yes.  I also said that I "deferred to the Compa ny's

19 judgment in this area, because they're more exper t at

20 what's in the queue."

21 Q. Do you support retaining the residential funds and

22 allowing the Company to spend those funds on effi ciency

23 programs?

24 A. The Company is refunding the amount?
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 1 Q. No.  The Company is spending the amount.

 2 MR. SPEIDEL:  Perhaps you can --

 3 BY THE WITNESS: 

 4 A. Oh, on the residential side, I'm sorry.  

 5 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

 6 Q. Yes.  Residential.

 7 MR. SPEIDEL:  Perhaps Attorney Hatfield

 8 could be a little more specific in terms of the

 9 interstices of what time frame we're discussing.

10 MS. HATFIELD:  Absolutely.  

11 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

12 Q. Mr. Cunningham, on the revised tariff pages tha t the

13 Company filed on October 14th, which is Exhibit 3 , do

14 you have that?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. If you turn to Bates Page 120.

17 A. Okay.

18 Q. This shows the Company's proposal for the Resid ential

19 Efficiency Charge, do you see that?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And, in the small box on the bottom left of the  page,

22 it shows the "Residential Rate".  Do you see that ?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And, they're proposing that it be "4.98 cents",  do you
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 1 see that?

 2 A. Yes, I do.   "0.0498 per therm".

 3 Q. And, is that acceptable to Staff to charge that  rate?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. Mr. Cunningham, do you know if the parties in D E 10-188

 6 were provided notice of Grid's request to reduce its

 7 efficiency spending?

 8 A. For residential programs, are you referring, or  for C&I

 9 programs?

10 Q. For both.

11 A. The current filing on Page 9, filed on Septembe r 30th,

12 talks about this issue, but mentions that the

13 stakeholders are still in discussion about the le vel of

14 spending.  So, I'm not sure that this point has b een

15 adequately ventilated so far in the context of th at

16 other proceeding.

17 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

18 I have nothing further.

19 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Thank you.  Mr.

20 Camerino?

21 MR. CAMERINO:  No questions.  Thank you.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Commissioner Ignatius.

23 BY CMSR. IGNATIUS: 

24 Q. Mr. Cunningham, I think I'm understanding what you're
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 1 saying, but I just want to be certain.  Although,

 2 initially, you had looked towards reductions in b oth

 3 the residential and the C&I programs, you are now

 4 persuaded that, on the residential side, the char ge

 5 should remain as filed, because the Company's

 6 explanation of how it thinks it can meet the budg eted

 7 amount has been persuasive to you, is that right?

 8 A. Yes.  Maybe I can provide a little bit of a con text for

 9 this also.  This is a very compressed docket.  An d, the

10 review of the issues has to be done in a pretty q uick

11 time period.  And, at the time of my initial anal ysis,

12 there was some discussion about the C&I program.  And,

13 because of the magnitude of the C&I underspending , I

14 developed and the Company responded to several

15 discovery questions about the C&I program.  So, w e

16 really didn't have enough discovery on the reside ntial.

17 However, after getting into the C&I

18 analysis in the context of my testimony, I looked  at

19 the residential issue.  And, I found a similar

20 condition on the residential side.  Unfortunately , I

21 didn't have an opportunity to have provided disco very

22 on that at that time.

23 However, subsequent to our receiving the

24 responses from the Company, we met before the hea ring
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 1 this morning and discussed this issue, and also t he

 2 Company witnesses discussed this issue further.  And,

 3 based on our meeting this morning and the discuss ion

 4 here in testimony, it was my conclusion that the

 5 Company is more expert at what's in the queue on the

 6 residential side than I.  And, chatted with Steve  Frink

 7 about this also, and we came to the conclusion th at we

 8 should give the Company the opportunity one more time

 9 to meet its forecast on the residential side.  An d, it

10 came with one little caveat, which was mentioned also

11 by the Company witnesses, and that was that, if, at the

12 end of the actual spending period, going into the  next

13 CGA, the Company continues to show an underspendi ng on

14 the C&I side, that the Company will refund that m oney

15 at the time of the next CGA.

16 MR. SPEIDEL:  And, if I may interrupt?

17 WITNESS CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

18 MR. SPEIDEL:  Mr. Cunningham, you're

19 referring to the residential program?

20 WITNESS CUNNINGHAM:  The residential

21 program, yes.

22 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  Thank you.

23 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  I have nothing else.

24 Thank you.
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 1 BY CHAIRMAN GETZ: 

 2 Q. Yes.  Mr. Cunningham, I just want to make sure I can

 3 track some of these numbers and how this plays ou t,

 4 focusing entirely on the C&I programs.  And, if I  begin

 5 with Exhibit Number 1, the original filing, Bates  stamp

 6 Page 121, --

 7 A. Okay.

 8 Q. -- and that box in the lower left-hand corner?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. So, it says "beginning balance", and it's a neg ative

11 1,454,000.  And, then, it goes to the "Program Bu dget",

12 which is 4.5 million.  And, I may have confused

13 something that -- I may have confused residential  and

14 commercial earlier from something Mr. Sherry said .  But

15 the program budget for the upcoming year for C&I is

16 4.5 million?

17 A. Yes.  I see that.

18 Q. And, that beginning balance, that negative, the

19 1.4 million, is that the unspent funds from the 2 010?

20 A. I can clarify that for you.  If you look at thi s

21 schedule on Bates 121, and you look at the first

22 boldened line under October of 2011?

23 Q. Yes.

24 A. And, you follow that line across to "Ending Bal ance
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 1 Plus Interest", four columns from the right, the

 2 1.454708 million is the ending balance of the LDA C for

 3 the C&I mechanism, as forecast by the Company at the

 4 end of October 2011, not 2010.

 5 Q. Okay.

 6 A. So, it's a rolling balance that is accumulated up

 7 through and including all of the actual and the

 8 forecast activity for August, September, and Octo ber of

 9 2011.  And, that's the starting balance of the

10 Company's rate calculation as it goes into the ne w CGA

11 winter period starting in November 2011.

12 Q. Okay.  And, then, the change from Exhibit 3 is

13 basically on the beginning balance, what the Comp any

14 does is add its 1.2 million to the previous

15 1.454 million, and then goes on from there?  Beca use

16 the beginning balance in the revised exhibit says

17 "$2,700,414".  I keep getting the wrong people up  here

18 to ask the questions to, but --

19 A. I'm sorry.  Yes, I'm just looking at this for t he first

20 time.  I just got it from Attorney Speidel this

21 morning.  The 2.7 million, about all I can tell y ou

22 about that number right now is, as I look at it, is

23 it's the beginning balance, which tracks to the e xhibit

24 above, under the emboldened line for October, at the
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 1 same point in time, the end of October.

 2 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  But, Mr. Camerino, can

 3 you make a representation on whether I'm going do wn the

 4 right path, that the 2.7 million reflects the Com pany's

 5 effort to reflect Mr. Cunningham's proposal?

 6 MR. CAMERINO:  Yes, that's my

 7 understanding.  And, also, if the Chairman would like to

 8 have Ms. Leary answer any of these questions, she 's

 9 available to do that as well.

10 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  All right.  Thank you.

11 I just want to try to walk myself through this.

12 BY CHAIRMAN GETZ: 

13 Q. And, if you hadn't made your proposed adjustmen t here,

14 this $1.2 million, and if it turned out, in fact,  that

15 that money wasn't spent in the current year, it w ould

16 have rolled out in our next proceeding as a negat ive

17 beginning balance, that's the way it would work?

18 A. In our next CGA proceeding?

19 Q. Yes.

20 A. Yes.

21 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  That's all I

22 have.  Mr. Speidel, do you have anything further?

23 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  If I could just ask

24 one last question on redirect, Mr. Chairman.
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 1 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

 2 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 

 3 Q. We've heard, Mr. Cunningham, some snippets on t he

 4 residential refund remedy from both yourself and Mr.

 5 Sherry.  But, just to make it clear, what we are

 6 referring to is a mechanism by which the 2011

 7 cumulative overage, the overcollection on residen tial

 8 energy efficiency collections through the LDAC ch arge,

 9 must be spent by the Company over the course of t he

10 upcoming cost of gas period and the summer cost o f gas

11 period, so that, as of October 2012, any funds th at

12 have not been spent from that overcollection must  be

13 refunded to the customers.  And, I believe,

14 Commissioners, the potential mechanism, this migh t

15 require some level of further discussion by which  this

16 would be accomplished, is that, at the next cost of

17 gas, we would have an accounting item reporting, where

18 the remaining overcollection, if any, would be re ported

19 back to Staff, and then would be somehow incorpor ated

20 into the cost of gas calculation, so that custome rs

21 could have a refund item.  Is that your general

22 understanding of what has been discussed today?

23 A. Yes, it is.

24 Q. Thank you very much, Mr. Cunningham.  And,
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 1 Mr. Cunningham, ultimately, this sort of remedy h as

 2 been first raised to Staff this morning before th e cost

 3 of gas hearing, is that correct?

 4 A. Yes.  That's correct.

 5 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you very much.  No

 6 further questions.

 7 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Just to clarify one

 8 thing.  Mr. Speidel, when you said that it "first  be

 9 reported to Staff", do you mean "Staff and the OC A"?

10 MR. SPEIDEL:  Well, I was -- yes, Staff

11 and the entire set of parties on the service list  in the

12 docket as a filing on the cost of gas.  But, of c ourse,

13 Staff would have the responsibility of auditing t hat

14 accounting item and reviewing that.  

15 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

16 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you.

17 MR. CAMERINO:  Mr. Chairman, just to

18 clean up the record on the line of questioning, i f I could

19 ask Mr. Cunningham a couple of questions?

20 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Please.

21 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

22 BY MR. CAMERINO: 

23 Q. Mr. Cunningham, could you turn to your Exhibit JJC-3

24 that's attached to your testimony.
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 1 A. This is the C&I LDAC rate.

 2 Q. It's Page -- Bates Page 012 of your testimony.

 3 A. Okay.

 4 Q. You see that?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. And, there you have a first column, and at the bottom

 7 you show an ending balance October 31, 2011 of a credit

 8 of approximately 1.4 million, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And, that's from the Company's filing?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And, then, you have a second column, which show s, if

13 your proposal on the C&I energy efficiency charge  were

14 adopted, it would result in a credit of 2.678 mil lion,

15 do you see that?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. And, you'll recall that the Chairman was asking  about

18 the difference between that and the Company's Bat es

19 Page 121, which shows a credit of approximately

20 2.7 million?

21 A. Yes.  

22 Q. Okay.  Would you just read Footnote 1 in your t able and

23 see if that would be the explanation, from your

24 understanding, of the slight difference between t hose

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                      [Witness:  Cunningham]
    84

 1 two numbers.

 2 A. Without checking further, I would say, yes, tha t would

 3 be an explanation for that difference.

 4 MR. CAMERINO:  Right.  All right.  Thank

 5 you.

 6 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  And, also, while we're

 7 at it, let's mark for identification as "Exhibit Number 5"

 8 Mr. Cunningham's testimony from October 6.

 9 (The document, as described, was 

10 herewith marked as Exhibit 5 for 

11 identification.) is 

12 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Is there anything

13 further for the witness?  

14 (No verbal response) 

15 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Hearing nothing, then

16 you're excused.  Thank you.  Okay.  Now, we have a joint

17 venture by the Office of Consumer Advocate and th e Jordan

18 Institute.

19 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

20 The OCA calls Dick Henry to the stand.

21 MR. HENRY:  "Please slow down."

22 MR. PATNAUDE:  Before we even get

23 started.  Please raise your right hand.

24 MR. HENRY:  I mean, I'll tell you, the

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                        [Witness:  Henry]
    85

 1 stenographer knows me too well.

 2 MR. PATNAUDE:  Is he going to be sworn

 3 in?  He is going to be sworn, correct?  Yes.  Jus t raise

 4 your right hand please.

 5 MR. HENRY:  I'm afraid I am not prepared

 6 to raise my right hand.  I am a member of the Soc iety of

 7 Friends and I will affirm.

 8 MR. PATNAUDE:  Okay.  I can do it that

 9 way.

10 (Whereupon D. Dickinson Henry Jr., was 

11 duly sworn/affirmed by the Court 

12 Reporter.) 

13 D. DICKINSON HENRY, JR., AFFIRMED 

14  DIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

16 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Henry.

17 A. Good afternoon.

18 Q. Would you please state your full name for the r ecord.

19 A. My name is David Dickinson Henry, Junior.

20 Q. By whom are you employed?

21 A. I'm the Executive Director of the Jordan Instit ute.

22 Q. What is your business address?

23 A. Forty-nine North Main Street, Concord, New Hamp shire.

24 Q. How long have you been with the Jordan Institut e?
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 1 A. Approximately six years.

 2 Q. What is your prior experience with regard to en ergy

 3 efficiency?

 4 A. Well, that's a long story.  When I was Director  of the

 5 administrative staff of the Massachusetts Audubon

 6 Society scientific staff, in the '70s, I particip ated

 7 in the New England Energy Efficiency Conference a s a

 8 member and representative.  That was when Amory L ovins'

 9 first soft energy paths came out.  And, the

10 congressional delegation in the Northeast as a re sult

11 of very high energy prices and long lines at the gas

12 station, he was trying to impact national policy.   That

13 was 35 years ago.  I have --

14 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  You're going to move

15 this along.

16 BY THE WITNESS: 

17 A. Yes.  I've done a lot.  I'm a member of the Ene rgy

18 Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board here.  I' ve

19 served as advisor to Public Service of New Hampsh ire on

20 various energy-related issues.  You know my backg round.

21 But, basically, the more relevant things at the m oment

22 is I serve as the technical advisor to the Enterp rise

23 Energy Fund, and we're dispersing about $10 milli on of

24 ARRA funds.  I am in partnership with the Retail
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 1 Merchants Association on a RGGI-funded  program f or the

 2 commercial and industrial sector, which we have

 3 essentially designed and are implementing.  I wor k with

 4 Jack Donovan at the Business Finance Authority, w hich

 5 also has $4 million worth of revolving funds for the

 6 commercial and industrial sector, and numerous ot her

 7 programs.  I have a staff that is experienced in

 8 auditing, have been trained by numerous workshops

 9 working with the many experts all around the coun try,

10 both developing policy, but, more importantly, de aling

11 with the barriers of implementation of energy

12 efficiency and conservation.

13 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

14 Q. And, you've participated in the CORE and gas ef ficiency

15 dockets at the Commission?

16 A. I have for many years, both at the Jordan Insti tute

17 and, prior to that, at the Massachusetts -- at th e New

18 Hampshire Audubon Society at that time.

19 Q. And, you have expertise in both residential and

20 commercial/industrial efficiency programs and pol icies?

21 A. I do.

22 Q. And, you filed a comment letter in this docket,  is that

23 correct?

24 A. I did.
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 1 MS. HATFIELD:  Mr. Chairman, would the

 2 Commission like to mark that as an exhibit?

 3 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Let's mark it for

 4 identification as "Exhibit Number 6".

 5 (The document, as described, was 

 6 herewith marked as Exhibit 6 for 

 7 identification.) 

 8 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

 9 Q. And, at the beginning of your letter, Mr. Henry , you do

10 briefly state the Jordan institute's mission, cor rect?

11 A. Correct.

12 Q. Have you reviewed both the Company's proposal a nd the

13 Staff testimony in this docket?

14 A. I have.

15 Q. And, I think, in your letter, you pretty clearl y state

16 that you're opposed to providing a credit back to  C&I

17 customers, is that right?

18 A. I am.

19 Q. And, --

20 A. And, I should say that it's not Dick Henry bein g

21 opposed to it, and it's not just the Jordan Insti tute.

22 It is the general belief of many of the trade

23 associations that I've listed at the end of my le tter,

24 in addition to personal communications from numer ous
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 1 commercial building owners, as well as speaking t o many

 2 vendors in the business, all of which have essent ially

 3 said the same thing.

 4 Q. Which is?

 5 A. They don't want the money back.  And, they want  to see

 6 the money used for the purposes it was originally

 7 intended.

 8 Q. In the second paragraph of your letter, you tal k about

 9 unspent funds from both 2010 and 2011, is that co rrect?

10 A. That is correct.

11 Q. So, is your position that the Company should re tain all

12 of those funds and spend them?

13 A. It is.  There's about 1.3 million in the 2010 n umbers

14 and there's about 1.2 million in the 2011 budget.

15 Q. Do you recall that Attorney Camerino asked Mr. Sherry

16 some questions about the state of the economy and  gas

17 costs?

18 A. I did.

19 Q. Do you agree that economic factors and gas cost s are

20 causing large customers to not make efficiency

21 investments?

22 A. Well, no, I don't, because the barriers to

23 implementation are changing rapidly.  We worked h ard at

24 Jordan, for instance, to pass the PACE legislatio n two
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 1 years ago, which would have provided funding.  Mr .

 2 Sherry accurately reflects the fact that business es are

 3 not at all anxious to take on additional expenses  that

 4 show up on their balance sheets.  But a number of

 5 mechanisms are being developed as we speak, and s ome

 6 exist at the moment, that allow businesses to go

 7 forward without that dilemma.  And, the Enterpris e

 8 Energy Fund and many of the other programs I ment ioned

 9 using ARRA funds are in the midst of implementing  those

10 projects as we speak.  So, there is, you know, se veral

11 tens of millions of dollars that are getting

12 implemented at the moment that were not available  even

13 as little as six months to a year ago.  And, the Retail

14 Merchants Association, the EEF Fund, the Business

15 Finance Authority Fund, and there are similar pro grams

16 on the municipal side, which also would qualify f or

17 these funds that I haven't even listed.  There's

18 another six and a half million dollars in the TRF

19 Program.  There's another $6 million, as you are aware,

20 under RGGI Funds from the Pay-For-Performance Pro gram.

21 In short, there's a lot of money out there right now

22 that people are anxious to spend, and are under

23 pressures to spend, because of the limitations of  the

24 ARRA funding, for instance, which has to be out b y
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 1 April 30th of this month -- of this coming year, and

 2 the RGGI funds which need to be out within two ye ars.

 3 So, there's a lot of projects that are

 4 currently in the works and about to go into or ar e

 5 already in implementation that could dramatically

 6 benefit from the entire $6 million that, in my op inion,

 7 should be available from the gas customers.

 8 And, the ironic thing here is, the

 9 customers want the money.  They have paid it and they

10 want it used for the purposes that it was intende d for.

11 And, the Company wants -- is eager and willing to  work

12 with the Collaborative to make this happen.  The

13 problem is, the Company, we think, will be changi ng

14 hands.  And, the new company doesn't want to over

15 promise and under deliver, which I completely

16 understand.  And, I feel, what I am recommending,  is

17 that the Company be held to the $3.5 million targ et,

18 and the Collaborative will help them spend that.  But

19 the Collaborative should be given the opportunity  to

20 spend the additional $2.5 million and, you know,

21 practice what we preach, to quote John Lennon, "g ive us

22 a chance."

23 Q. In your fourth paragraph of your letter, you sa y that

24 "the Jordan Institute has identified $4 million w orth
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 1 of rebates in current projects."

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. I am assuming you can't identify specific proje cts

 4 because of confidentiality issues?

 5 A. Yes.  I've shared them with the Company.  And, as they

 6 have said, they're going to back to check.  Some of

 7 them they knew about; some of them they didn't kn ow

 8 about.  I was given approximately two weeks to co me up

 9 with this list.  And, I'm sure each of the trade

10 associations have said they would be more than ha ppy to

11 get notice out to their members, the Hospital

12 Association, the Restaurant & Lodging Association , the

13 Grocers Association, the Business & Industry

14 Association, the Retail Merchants Association,

15 etcetera, etcetera.  And, I have also spoken to the

16 Chambers of Commerce in both Concord and Manchest er, I

17 hadn't had the chance to get to Nashua quite yet,  and

18 they are both interested in folks coming down and

19 speaking to them.

20 The point is, the marketing at the

21 medium and large size customers has to be done

22 one-on-one.  That's the only way.  These companie s do

23 not have enough time to sort of think this all th rough

24 on their own, and that's what we do a lot of at t he
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 1 Jordan Institute, and bring to their attention

 2 technologies, financing, rebates, etcetera, etcetera,

 3 etcetera.

 4 And, frankly, I think that the Company

 5 would agree that, for the past two years, very li ttle

 6 of that has been done, and that is certainly what  I'm

 7 hearing on the street, is an overall frustration with

 8 the Company, after repeated attempts to get ahold  of

 9 them, that they're not responding.  So, that is w hy I

10 think a collective effort going forward would be very

11 constructive.  But I do not think it's fair to ex pect

12 the Company to be responsible for the entire

13 $6 million.

14 Q. Mr. Henry, if we do some simple math, and we ta ke the

15 $1.2 million credit that Staff is proposing for C &I

16 customers, and we divide it by the 10,000 C&I cus tomers

17 that Mr. Sherry testified that the Company has in  this

18 state, that comes out to about a $120 credit per

19 customer, not taking into account usage.  Would y ou

20 agree with that?

21 A. I would agree with that for the 2011 year.  The re's an

22 almost similar amount for the 2010 year.  So, you 're

23 offering the companies essentially $20 a month.

24 Q. And, if we look at your second to last paragrap h in
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 1 your letter, you talk about the benefits of effic iency,

 2 in that it provides "an economic multiplier effec t",

 3 and also the benefits over time from efficiency

 4 measures.   And, I was wondering if you could spe ak to

 5 those benefits?

 6 A. Yes.  I'd be delighted to.  Let us assume that the

 7 commercial and industrial sector is given an

 8 opportunity to spend this additional $2.5 million .  By

 9 and large, this is usually about 30 to 33 percent  of

10 the cost of the budget.  So, the industry will pu t up

11 another $5 million.  So, right off the bat, ratep ayers

12 will get a two-to-one match.  On most programs, - -

13 MR. CAMERINO:  Excuse me.  Just if I

14 could object to this particular line of questioni ng.  It

15 just -- it's going to be obviously very fact-inte nsive.  I

16 think the Company would stipulate that there are benefits

17 to energy efficiency spending.  But we're really not in a

18 position to be able to cross-examine Mr. Henry on , you

19 know, the calculations that he's going to offer u p here.

20 I don't think his point of that there are benefit s and

21 leveraging is disputed.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Ms. Hatfield.

23 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you.

24 WITNESS HENRY:  Can I just make one
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 1 point?  I appreciate Attorney Camerino's position , and I

 2 realize -- I'm happy to be cross-examined on any of this

 3 stuff.  But I just want to make one point right n ow.  In

 4 addition to the gas customers, the price differen tial

 5 between oil and gas is so great now, I don't thin k we've

 6 ever seen it this great before, that the market-b ased

 7 drivers to encourage businesses to look at switch ing over

 8 to gas are overwhelming.

 9 This morning, West Texas Intermediate

10 was at $87, which is what people look at and thin k is "oh,

11 that's a nice low price."

12 (Court reporter interruption.) 

13 BY THE WITNESS: 

14 A. West Texas Intermediate.  In fact, no West Texa s

15 Intermediate ever makes it to the Northeast.  Wha t is

16 the real price is $112 of the Brent oil.  So, rig ht

17 now, the company that switched from gas to oil wo uld

18 reduce its cost by 61 percent.  This is a very se rious

19 driver.  Thank you.

20 MS. HATFIELD:  I have nothing further.

21 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Mr. Speidel.  

23 MS. HATFIELD:  Oh.  Actually, I did have

24 one.  

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                        [Witness:  Henry]
    96

 1 BY MS. HATFIELD: 

 2 Q. Mr. Henry, did you hear the testimony about a

 3 compromise that would allow the Company to keep t he

 4 residential unspent funds?

 5 A. I did.

 6 Q. Do you support that?

 7 A. I do.

 8 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you.  Nothing

 9 further.

10 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Mr. Speidel.

11 MR. SPEIDEL:  I just have one quick

12 question for Mr. Henry.  

13 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. SPEIDEL: 

15 Q. You alluded to this a little bit earlier, but y ou

16 haven't been able to provide Staff, in advance of  this

17 hearing, of any, including Mr. Cunningham, of any

18 details regarding these projects or the specific

19 identities of the project progenitors, is that co rrect?

20 A. I have only given them to the Company.

21 Q. You have only given them to the Company?  

22 A. Right.  Given enough time, I would be happy to talk to

23 the clients and get their permission to share the

24 possibility, you know, the possibility of using t hese
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 1 rebates.  Frankly, most of these clients don't ev en

 2 know they exist.

 3 MR. SPEIDEL:  Thank you.  No further

 4 questions.

 5 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Mr. Camerino.

 6 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you.

 7 BY MR. CAMERINO: 

 8 Q. Mr. Henry, you list at the end of your letter, which

 9 has been marked as "Exhibit 6", a number of

10 organizations.  Have you been authorized by those

11 organizations to testify on their behalf today or  are

12 you just testifying on behalf of the Jordan Insti tute?

13 A. I'm just testifying on behalf of the Jordan Ins titute.

14 And, in my letter, what I tried to indicate was t hat

15 all of those groups expressed interest in partici pating

16 in such a collaborative.  But, many of them said to me,

17 "we would have to take this back to our boards an d get

18 formal approval", and so forth and so on.  Which I

19 think they mostly were eager to do, but the proce ss was

20 moving so fast, and we had such a short time to w ork

21 in, that that kind of a procedural thing could no t be

22 accomplished.

23 Q. You talk at the end of your direct testimony ab out the

24 opportunities for converting customers who use ot her
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 1 fuels over to gas, do you recall that?

 2 A. Uh-huh.

 3 Q. So, with regard to those prospective customers that

 4 you're referring to, obviously, those are people who

 5 are not today customers of National Grid NH, corr ect?

 6 A. That is correct.  And, one of the reasons why t he

 7 proposed rebate approach by the Staff makes no se nse to

 8 those customers, because they wouldn't benefit fr om it.

 9 They also weren't paying it either.

10 Q. Uh-huh.  And, to the extent that those customer s are in

11 the $4 million worth of projects that you refer t o in

12 your letter, there would be costs associated with

13 reaching out physically to those customers to con nect

14 them to the system, correct?

15 A. That's all over the map.  Some of those costs, for

16 instance, when we connected River Bend here in Co ncord,

17 was literally, you know, 30 feet, if that.  Other s, the

18 distances can become prohibitive.  And, in discus sions

19 with the Company in the past couple of weeks, it was

20 made very clear to me that those costs are under a

21 completely different source of funding and would not be

22 related to this particular pot of money.

23 Q. You're talking about the cost of extending the

24 Company's system to reach those customers?
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 1 A. Correct.

 2 Q. And, if you know, is that the tariff provision that

 3 relates to when a customer has to contribute to t he

 4 cost of connecting to the system?

 5 A. I have no idea.  But I think there are two prob lems

 6 here.  One is connecting to a customer who hasn't  been

 7 connected.  And, the other is where gas just isn' t

 8 available, you know, you have to go half a mile t o get

 9 there.  But the other problem is, and we see this  in

10 Concord, is the existing demand for gas, even tho ugh

11 it's in the street, has very limited capacity.  A nd,

12 if, for instance, Concord Steam were not being ab le to

13 rebuild their new plant, for whatever reason, the re

14 would be a lot of customers that would be asking the

15 gas company for service, and that would require a

16 significant increase in the capacity, because it' s just

17 not there right now in the street.

18 Q. Okay.  So, what I wanted to just focus on for a  second,

19 though, is, when you were making a case that the low

20 cost of natural gas today is a compelling reason for

21 these customers to do this project, --

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. -- associated with that, however, there's an ob stacle

24 to overcome, which is the funding of the connecti on to
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 1 the Company's system, correct?

 2 A. That is true.

 3 Q. And, there may also be time involved before tha t can

 4 all occur?

 5 A. Yes.  

 6 Q. Okay.  And, we're talking about the spending fo r 2012,

 7 correct?

 8 A. We are.

 9 Q. Right.  Now, as to customers that are already o n the

10 Company's system, that incentive of low gas price s

11 versus oil, to come over and convert, that doesn' t

12 exist, because they're already gas customers, rig ht?

13 A. That is true.  But there's another reason why t hey

14 should be interested.  And, that is that most of the

15 gas boilers and furnaces out there right now are

16 atmospheric boilers, and they are notoriously poo r

17 performers.  So, they're running at around a 60 t o

18 68 percent efficiency.  By switching those boiler s and

19 furnaces over to sealed combustion systems, they' re

20 going to jump up to 92 percent efficiency, if the y go

21 the condensing route.

22 Q. You're just describing what one of the energy

23 efficiency type projects might be?  

24 A. One of many.  

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                        [Witness:  Henry]
   101

 1 Q. Okay.

 2 A. And, what I'm saying is, you can expect about a  25 to

 3 30 percent reduction in your cost.  

 4 Q. Right.  I just want to focus on your point abou t gas

 5 prices.  If you're already a gas customer, and ga s

 6 prices are low, your incentive to be more efficie nt is

 7 actually going down as gas prices go down, isn't it?  

 8 A. Well, -- 

 9 Q. Just looking at the gas price factor.  

10 A. I mean, the amount of change here is not going to be a

11 whole lot more than what it already has been.  I mean,

12 you know, three years ago we were looking at a bu ck

13 fifty a therm delivered, now we're looking at abo ut

14 $1.08 or something, I think that's what the state

15 average was last week.  And, probably commercial guys

16 are getting a little bit better.  In a down econo my,

17 all of these businesses are looking for any possi ble

18 way they can reduce their costs.  So, if they're

19 running a 2, 3, $400,000 a year budget, and you c ome to

20 them and say "look, we can reduce that cost by

21 25 percent", they're going to pay attention.  But  the

22 barrier is, how do you finance that off balance s heet?

23 And, that is one of the things that we're working  very

24 hard on, so that businesses could go ahead with t hat
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 1 and not have to take out valuable capital.

 2 Q. And, would you agree that, in a down or sluggis h

 3 economy, businesses may be averse to taking on

 4 additional financing, and that would at least cau se

 5 them to pause, take longer in making decisions, a nd, in

 6 some cases, not make the investment?

 7 A. That's -- I can't say that that's really been o ur

 8 experience.  Our experience, in both the Enterpri se

 9 Energy Fund and in the Retail Merchants Associati on and

10 other programs, is they are dying for help right now.

11 And, by implementing the rebates that the gas com pany

12 has available, but nobody knew about, and reducin g your

13 energy costs by 25 percent, just on efficiency, a nd we

14 can do a lot better than that, it's a very compel ling

15 argument.  And, so, I think that there is a huge

16 opportunity here.  And, as we get more and more

17 examples on the ground in specific geographical a reas,

18 you get a business-to-business information, and

19 businesses trust each other a whole lot more than  they

20 trust vendors.  And, vendors have just, you know,  lost

21 their creditability in the business community.

22 Q. You heard Mr. Sherry describe the staffing goin g

23 forward that the Company expects to have in order  to

24 promote its energy efficiency programs?
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 1 A. I did.

 2 Q. And, would you agree that it takes company pers onnel,

 3 and I understand that you're offering your effort s and

 4 those of others as well, but it takes company per sonnel

 5 to actually implement, market, vet, review these

 6 programs and the projects that come out of them?

 7 A. Well, I would respectfully disagree with that.  I think

 8 that what would be most helpful would be for the

 9 Company to have people, like Rob McLean, who are

10 technically skilled and engineers who can work wi th a

11 specific company that's decided to go forward.  B y

12 taking advantage of the Community Development Fin ance

13 Authority programs, such as the Enterprise Energy  Fund,

14 the Better Buildings Program, where we actually h ave

15 people on the ground in Nashua trying to scare up  work,

16 the Jordan Institute, that's going around and mar keting

17 these kind of things, there is a whole slew of fo lks

18 out there right now that are trying very hard to create

19 business.  So, I don't think the Company, it shou ld

20 spend, you know, a limited amount of time in the

21 marketing.  But it's the one-to-one relationship on the

22 very technical basis about "what can you do for m y HVAC

23 system?" that would be most helpful.  

24 I also think, I would add that I think
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 1 that the CORE efficiency group should do some

 2 modifications of the restrictions on the Company,  so

 3 that we focus more on retrofit and less on new

 4 construction, because that's what's in the market  right

 5 now.

 6 Q. What you're describing is the kind of collabora tive

 7 process you'd like to see, right?

 8 A. That's right.

 9 Q. And, I assume, when you say "collaborative", th at means

10 that the Company is working on this as well, comm itting

11 its staff to that?

12 A. Absolutely.

13 Q. Okay.  If you spend, instead of three and a hal f

14 million dollars, you're spending $7 million, that 's

15 going to take more staffing and effort by the Com pany,

16 is it not?

17 A. Not necessarily.  I mean, if we take the exampl e of

18 Concord Hospital, they have been working on a com bined

19 heat and power program for the last three years.

20 They've had three or four different studies.  And ,

21 they're planning to spend 3 to $5 million bucks.  They

22 didn't know about this program.

23 Q. Okay.

24 A. So, working with them, you could have, you know , a 250
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 1 to $500,000 rebate.

 2 Q. Wouldn't you expect, especially in the face of a couple

 3 of years of under spending, that if the Company w ere

 4 here today saying to the Commission "let us keep this

 5 money, because we can spend $7 million", not, you  know,

 6 three and a half million, that it would be essent ially

 7 duty-bound to make sure that it committed additio nal

 8 resources, not the exact same resources as it wou ld

 9 spend as it thinks is necessary for its budgeted

10 amount, but additional resources to ensure that t hat

11 happens, and then it wouldn't come back here a ye ar

12 from now and say "we're still underspent"?

13 A. No.  There's been a lot of turmoil in the Compa ny over

14 the last two years.  First, they bought KeySpan.  And,

15 in the CORE dockets, three years ago I was saying  "when

16 are you guys going to coordinate the electric wit h the

17 gas?"  And, they said "give us time", "give us ti me",

18 "give us time."  So, we did.  And, then, they dec ided

19 to sell the Company, so that was another set of

20 turmoil.  And, as Mr. Sherry has pointed out, the y laid

21 off a large number of employees.

22 Q. If I could -- did you hear Mr. Sherry say that people

23 were "laid off" from this program?

24 A. I heard him say that the Company downsized its staff

                    {DG 11-192}  {10-17-11)



                        [Witness:  Henry]
   106

 1 extensively.  In other conversations with him, I

 2 believe, and he can correct me if I'm wrong, that  most

 3 of the staff that were staffing this here in New

 4 Hampshire were working out of Massachusetts and h ad

 5 other responsibilities.  There were very few dedi cated

 6 staff here in New Hampshire working on these prog rams

 7 in the last few years.

 8 Q. Okay.  I'm just focused -- I just want a clear record.

 9 You said that Mr. Sherry said that people had bee n

10 "laid off" that worked on this program, and, you know,

11 I don't want to go back to the transcript --

12 A. Maybe they quit, maybe they were fired, I don't  know.

13 But there are fewer people --

14 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Well, that's not my

15 recollection of what Mr. Sherry said, but we can let the

16 record speak for itself.

17 WITNESS HENRY:  Well, maybe I quoted him

18 incorrectly.  I apologize, Mr. Sherry, if I did.

19 BY MR. CAMERINO: 

20 Q. So, my only point is, it takes company particip ation

21 and staffing commitment to support these programs , in

22 addition to the collaborative effort that you env ision,

23 right?

24 A. True.
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 1 Q. Okay.  And, presumably, if the program is large r for

 2 2012, it would take more of a commitment, is that  a

 3 fair statement?

 4 A. Well, on most of the Enterprise Energy Fund pro jects

 5 that we're working on, you know, we have engineer s or

 6 several engineers designing the systems.  We'd be  in

 7 conversations with the Company as to whether thes e

 8 measures would or wouldn't qualify.  And, then, t he

 9 Company would say "well, you know, how much does it

10 cost and what percentages", blah, blah, blah, and  we'd

11 work out most of that prior to even approaching t he

12 Company.  So, I think these are very sophisticate d

13 customers and sophisticated projects.  And, we're  going

14 to walk in the door saying "we think we're entitl ed to

15 $250,000 based on your criteria."

16 Q. I asked you a question before about the Company  making

17 a commitment to the Commission to spend these

18 additional funds and being concerned about being able

19 to meet that commitment, especially after two yea rs of

20 not having spent the budget.

21 A. Right.

22 Q. If the Jordan Institute or the other members of  your

23 collaborative say "please let us help in this pro cess,

24 we want to see this money spent", and it doesn't get
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 1 spent, there aren't consequences to the Jordan

 2 Institute or these other members, right, in terms  of

 3 Commission action afterwards that can be directed  at

 4 them, is there?

 5 A. Well, there are certainly consequences for the sector.

 6 And, what I would -- what I said in my letter was , I

 7 didn't think that the utility itself should be he ld to

 8 more than the 3.5 it was prepared to deal with.  But I

 9 did say "challenge the sector to find the additio nal

10 2.5."  And, this would be very useful to those of  us

11 who are in the field, because, for just the reaso ns

12 that Mr. Sherry pointed out, some businesses are

13 hemming and hawing and, "well, I don't know, I'm not

14 sure I want for pull the trigger on this."  And, if we

15 can, as essentially a third party, neutral group,  say

16 "listen, you've got to spend this money or you're  going

17 to lose it, or you're going to get a check for 10 0

18 bucks next year, which do you want to do?"  I thi nk

19 that will be a powerful, persuasive argument, com ing

20 from a third party that is neither the utility or  a

21 vendor.

22 Q. One other question.  You had said that you unde rstood

23 that the "new company didn't want to over promise ", and

24 I recognize we've created some confusion with
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 1 Mr. Sherry's multiple hats.  But you haven't talk ed to

 2 Liberty Energy, which is, I'm assuming, the "new

 3 company"?  You've been talking to National Grid,

 4 correct?  

 5 A. Yes.  I've been talking to National Grid, I've been

 6 talking to Bill Sherry, and Rob McLean, and other s in

 7 your office, Mr. Sherry' s office.

 8 Q. I asked the question --

 9 A. Eric Stanley, excuse me.  Eric has been very he lpful.

10 Q. I ask the question because we're here on behalf  of

11 National Grid.  And, I just want to make sure tha t, in

12 saying that, you didn't mean literally that Liber ty

13 Energy has indicated to you what they are or are not

14 willing to do?

15 A. No.

16 MR. CAMERINO:  Okay.  If I could just

17 have one second, Mr. Chairman?

18 (Atty. Camerino conferring with Mr. 

19 Sherry.) 

20 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you very much.

21 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Commissioner Ignatius.

22 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

23 BY CMSR. IGNATIUS: 

24 Q. Mr. Henry, you mentioned a number of different funding
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 1 sources involved in energy efficiency investments .  So,

 2 I'd like to have you describe how you see the

 3 relationship between those funds and the energy

 4 efficiency dollars we're talking about here.

 5 A. Absolutely.  Let me give an example of the Laco nia

 6 Athletic & Swim Club, which is a project we're

 7 currently working on in Laconia that is served by

 8 National Grid.  We are putting approximately half  a

 9 million dollars into that program, I say "we", th e

10 Enterprise Energy Fund, just went through an exte nsive

11 selection process.  And, just to hit the highligh ts, it

12 has an antiquated gas boilers, several.  It has a

13 defunct dehumidification system.  It has no insul ation

14 whatsoever in the walls of the swimming pool, whi ch

15 they keep at 88 degrees year-round.  And, they

16 experience, you know, something on the order of 6 ,500

17 to 7,000 heating degree days there.  So, you have  a

18 delta T of almost 100 degrees when it's 20 below

19 outside in Laconia, which is not unheard of.  So,  we're

20 wrapping that building, replacing the boilers, wh ich

21 would qualify for one of these rebates.  We're ta lking

22 to the company about how to do a gas-fired

23 dehumidification system there, which would cut th eir

24 energy costs significantly.  And, we have gotten the
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 1 CFA to lengthen the loan.  So, this whole thing w ill be

 2 cash positive, or at least cash neutral, for a bu siness

 3 that is central to Laconia.

 4 The rebates from this program, if they

 5 were in the 100,000 range, would make a huge

 6 difference, and allow us to do other things.  For

 7 instance, the EEF Fund will not pay for anything

 8 associated with the pool, so we can't do the

 9 dehumidification.  So, we have the Retail Merchan ts

10 Association helping with that.  And, we would hop efully

11 get a healthy rebate from National Grid for that

12 program as well.  So, it's this bringing together

13 multiple sources to make these kinds of programs work

14 and help small businesses and medium and large si ze

15 businesses do this.

16 Q. Would the energy efficiency dollars we're talki ng about

17 here be spent on programs that are not already ap proved

18 as part of the CORE programs?

19 A. Absolute -- well, no, wait.  "Not already appro ved as

20 the CORE programs"?  I'm not quite sure what you mean.

21 Q. Well, the energy efficiency monies collected th rough

22 the cost of gas are to fund the CORE program budg ets,

23 are they not?

24 A. Uh-huh.
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 1 Q. Are your proposed uses of this money --

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. -- consistent with the CORE programs?

 4 A. Absolutely.

 5 Q. Is there anything that you would see investing this

 6 money in going towards something that is not iden tified

 7 as a "CORE program"?

 8 A. Well, the interesting thing is, on the gas side , as

 9 long as you can make the cost/benefit ratio argum ent,

10 many more items are available through the CORE pr ograms

11 than is true on the electric side.  So, anything you do

12 that cost-effectively reduces demand above code, you

13 know, the client's supposed to meet code, but, ab ove

14 that would qualify for the gas program.  So, it's  an

15 extremely useful program to the commercial and

16 industrial sector because of its breadth.  And, s o, you

17 know, a dehumidification system is a fairly arcan e

18 thing, but it applies to every swimming pool in t he

19 state.  And, those that are on gas are lucky.

20 Q. Is it your testimony that these funds can help to meet

21 the deadlines of the ARRA Program that have to be

22 completed by April 2012?

23 A. They certainly would help meet those deadlines.   But,

24 more importantly, in some cases, they're additive .  In
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 1 other words, there are limitations on the ARRA fu nding

 2 that we know we ought to put in a dehumidificatio n

 3 system here, but we can't do it with ARRA funding .  So,

 4 fortunately, the Retail Merchants Association has  come

 5 in, and these rebates would make that possible, w hich

 6 makes the whole program much more energy efficien t.

 7 So, whenever anyone comes out to fly the flag abo ut

 8 what a great project this was, all participants c an

 9 take credit, no matter how much they put in.

10 Q. I understand the additive benefit in your examp le is a

11 good one.  How, though, would use of these funds help

12 ARRA recipients spend down their ARRA money by th e

13 April 2012 deadline?

14 A. Well, on most of the ARRA programs right now, w e're

15 cutting, we're cutting things because, you know, costs

16 were higher than estimated.  So, this makes these

17 programs work economically, and it preserves the

18 cost/benefit ratios that were calculated from the

19 start.  So, they're a very important addition to these

20 programs, and will result in far better energy sa vings,

21 carbon reduction, job creation, blah, blah, blah.   So,

22 they are extremely helpful.

23 Does that answer your question?

24 Q. I understand that they're helpful, in your view , in
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 1 supplementing the funding available for programs.   I

 2 still don't see how they help the ARRA deadline t o be

 3 met, because you said that your problem is the

 4 opposite, that things are coming in higher --

 5 A. Well, let me put it another way.  Up until two or three

 6 weeks ago, many of these programs didn't even kno w this

 7 program existed.  And, so, now that they do know it

 8 existed and they can apply, and the program has b een

 9 very helpful on that, you know, as long as they'r e not

10 completed two years ago, if it's in progress, we can

11 qualify for these rebates.  And, sort of word's g etting

12 out that there's some money there that can help t hese

13 programs.  And, it -- I got to tell you, people d idn't

14 know about this program.

15 Q. What is the Jordan Institute's role if this wer e

16 approved?  And, then, specifically, are you provi ding

17 services that would be paid for out of these fund s?

18 A. I'd love it if we were.  But, at the moment, we 're not.

19 Basically, we're advising these -- we're retained  by

20 the owner to serve essentially as the owner's rep , and

21 one of my roles is to find additional sources of funds.

22 So, that is what I do, whether it's a federal tax

23 credit or whatever.  Because the process is so ar cane

24 that very few people can really understand it all .  So,
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 1 that's a service that we perform as part of the s oft

 2 costs of the program.  But I would not get any

 3 percentage or any kind of direct benefit from the se

 4 rebates.  I get an "attaboy" and maybe get taken out to

 5 dinner, but that's about the extent of it.

 6 Q. When you just said that -- 

 7 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  I'm sorry.

 8 (Chairman Getz and Commissioner Ignatius 

 9 conferring.). 

10 WITNESS HENRY:  Thank you.  It's water.

11 It's just water. 

12 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  I'd hate to think we've

13 driven you to drink.  

14 BY CMSR. IGNATIUS: 

15 Q. You had said a moment ago that your arrangement  is with

16 your clients to seek the most -- to seek whatever

17 funding might be available for projects.

18 A. Uh-huh.  Among other things, yes.

19 Q. Does that mean that the list of companies that you've

20 presented to National Grid is a list of your clie nts?

21 A. Some of them are and a bunch of them aren't.  W e're

22 asked by the Enterprise Energy Fund, by the Retai l

23 Merchants Association, and on our own as well, to  do

24 audits and assessments of clients.  And, I often say to
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 1 someone "have you thought about this?"  But a bun ch of

 2 these, for instance, the Concord Hospital project  just

 3 emerged from the group that met last week, becaus e the

 4 Facilities Manager of Concord Hospital came and s aid

 5 "Boy, I didn't know about this.  I could use the

 6 money."  The representative from Hospital Associa tion

 7 came and said "Jeez, we'd really like to talk to you

 8 about, you know, certainly the critical care, 12

 9 critical care hospitals around the state, as well  as

10 the larger ones."  

11 John Dumas, at the Rest -- I mean, at

12 the Grocers Association, when Rob McLean gave the

13 prescribed savings for some of the facilities, yo u

14 know, equipment that's used in grocers went "whoa ", and

15 the Restaurant & Lodging Association, I think, fe el

16 similarly.  It's sort of like there are very good

17 rebates on restaurant equipment, energy recovery

18 ventilation, and these are prescriptive rebates, so

19 they go very quickly.  Makes a big difference to one of

20 these projects.

21 Q. You heard the statement from Mr. Sherry about t ime lags

22 from people showing initial interest to actual

23 completion of projects for those who are able to

24 finally make the investment.  Did you agree with his
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 1 sense of the kind of time frames that you can see ?

 2 A. I have universally had some skepticism about ma rketing

 3 programs by regulated utilities.  I think they're  doing

 4 the very best that they can, given that it's not really

 5 high on their hymnsheet.  For other organizations , like

 6 the trade associations, like the Retail Merchants

 7 Associations, and the BIA and so forth, it's a mu ch

 8 higher priority to help their membership lower th eir

 9 costs.  They have a completely sort of different

10 enthusiasm, shall we say, for the process.  And, so,

11 what we need to do is get, in this collaborative

12 effort, get really good detailed information from  the

13 Company about "what do you want exactly?"  You kn ow,

14 "what is something you can look at and say "Yep.  The

15 BIA looked over these forms or the Jordan Institu te

16 looked over these forms, and they're all in order , and

17 all we have to do is say "yes"," we could really speed

18 things up a lot.  And, they're never going to hav e the

19 contacts and the personal one-to-one relationship s that

20 each of the trade associations do.  So, you talke d

21 about like Jack Donovan, at the Business Finance

22 Authority, he's been in the business for 25 years .  He

23 knows every business in the gas districts in the area.

24 And, he's saying "okay, tell me the pipe size in this
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 1 particular street, and I'll tell you how many guy s they

 2 can hook up to it."  They can't give us that

 3 information.  But that doesn't mean we couldn't g ive

 4 them addresses and say "okay, what could we do he re?"  

 5 So, there's a whole level of sort of

 6 one-to-one handholding that is at the core of mak ing

 7 any of these programs work.  And, it's particular ly

 8 true on the commercial and industrial side.

 9 Q. In your recommendation for a collaborative to w ork to

10 make this funding be utilized, you're not recomme nding

11 using the CORE programs, not to call it the sort of

12 working group, there's a sort of ongoing group of

13 stakeholders.  

14 A. Right.

15 Q. Why is that?

16 A. There is very little, if any, representation of  the

17 commercial and industrial sector in that working group.

18 You have the utilities, you have the Jordan Insti tute,

19 you have the low income folks.  It's, frankly, a

20 heavily residential focused group.  And, correct me if

21 I'm wrong, Meredith, but I can't -- you know, Mik e

22 comes when he can, but it's -- you know, they hav en't

23 seen it -- we just don't have the representation in

24 that group.  We have better representation on the  EESE
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 1 Board than we do in the CORE Advisory Board.  And ,

 2 there's nothing formal there, you know what I mea n?  I

 3 call myself on the CORE Advisory Board, but I don 't

 4 have any authority, I don't have any voting right s.

 5 I'm just the techie geek that says "No, that's no t

 6 going to work.  Why don't you try this."

 7 So, there's no formal way to have an

 8 impact on that group.  If Staff says "well, that' s a

 9 nice idea, Dick, but we're not going to do it", I  have

10 no appeal.  I have no way of saying "well, I just

11 really think there's a better way of doing this."

12 Q. And, what sort of authority are you envisioning  in the

13 collaborative in your proposal here?

14 A. The joy to the Company of walking in the door w ith

15 $6 million worth of projects, rebates, that they didn't

16 have to spend a whole lot of time going out and l ooking

17 for, but they could spend a lot of technical time

18 vetting and making sure it met the criteria of th e CORE

19 programs.  So, I think what we're doing is we're

20 providing a very effective outreach program, that  the

21 Company can't afford.  And, that we have learned,

22 through these other programs, is very effective i f it's

23 one-on-one.  I mean, RMA, we started out like eve rybody

24 else.  We said "oh, we're going to have five regi onal
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 1 meetings and we're going to give them breakfast a nd

 2 everyone's going to come out and look at energy

 3 efficiency."  The first three meetings, we had tw o

 4 people show up for each of the three meetings, an d we

 5 stopped.  And, we just went to one-on-one, go tal k to

 6 Joe, and say "would you like to do this?"  "Well,  I

 7 don't know anything about it."  "Well, here's wha t's

 8 available."  "Really?"  "And, I'm not a vendor.  I'm

 9 telling you you can cut your bill by 30 percent."

10 "Really?  How do I do that?"

11 So, there's credibility in the trade

12 associations, and, in all due humility, the Jorda n

13 Institute, that is not there in the vendor commun ity.

14 And, that's why we're effective.  But these rebat es are

15 a big help.  And, having this sort of time-sensit ive

16 thing will really help the commercial and industr ial

17 sector, I believe, pull the trigger and do some o f

18 these projects, because they know they're going t o lose

19 the money.  They know they're losing the ARRA mon ey.

20 You know, every time I turn around, RGGI is getti ng

21 another shot at it.  You know, and, so, this is r eally

22 important.  And, to say, "you know, if you guys u se

23 this money, and if you show that it really works,  then

24 there's a good chance we'll get more next year."
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 1 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.  Nothing

 2 else.

 3 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Let's go off the record

 4 for a second.

 5 (Brief off-the-record discussion 

 6 ensued.)  

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  All right.  So, let's go

 8 back on the record.

 9 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  I have no other

10 questions.  Thank you.

11 BY CHAIRMAN GETZ: 

12 Q. Mr. Henry, let me -- I'm still trying to get so me of

13 these pieces straight in my mind, but, and maybe some

14 of this is the timing of things.  Exhibit 3, the

15 revisions by the Company, came in on October 14th .

16 And, as we discussed before on the C&I, it looks like

17 they were trying to reflect the proposal by Staff  on

18 making an adjustment to the LDAC rate for the C&I

19 energy efficiency funds.  But you, in your letter  from

20 the 16th, in the second paragraph, second sentenc e, say

21 "The Commission Staff and National Grid have take n the

22 position that these monies should be returned to C&I

23 customers."

24 A. Correct.
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 1 Q. But let me get -- so, let me make sure I unders tand

 2 what your position is.  First of all, you disagre e with

 3 the proposal by Mr. Cunningham to make the $1.2 m illion

 4 adjustment?

 5 A. (Nodding affirmatively).

 6 Q. Does that mean that you -- does that get us bac k then

 7 to the original, in terms of the LDAC charge, the

 8 originally proposed by the Company was the 2.98 c ents

 9 per therm.  Are you supporting that or are you

10 supporting something else entirely, a higher LDAC

11 charge?

12 A. Here what's happened, and I invite the Company to

13 correct me if I'm wrong.  I believe the Staff and  the

14 Company agreed that the 2010 rebate of $1.3 milli on

15 should be given back and is reflected in the prop osed

16 LDAC, before they even started talking about the 2011

17 dollars.  And, then, they started talking about t he

18 2011 dollars.  And, then, they said "well, maybe we

19 should give that back, too."  So, this number tha t's

20 proposed as the going forward mill rate, and corr ect me

21 if I'm wrong, reflects giving back the 1.3, and t hen

22 taking another 1.2 away.  And, what I'm saying is , I

23 don't think either of those amounts of money shou ld be

24 removed, should go back essentially to the same r ate
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 1 that you had last year, and use the 2.5 for addit ional

 2 efficiency work, but leave it up to the sector to  come

 3 up with that 2.5, don't penalize the utility for it, if

 4 they don't meet that term.  Does anybody -- did I  state

 5 that more or less correctly?

 6 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Well, it's not "call and

 7 response".  We may end up having to -- well, Mr. Camerino,

 8 can you, I don't know if you can answer that ques tion,

 9 because it goes to this witness's state of mind, I guess.

10 MR. CAMERINO:  I can -- let me see if I

11 can take a stab at it, because I have spoken to M r. Henry

12 and has Mr. Sherry.  My understanding is that the re was

13 some discussion when the Company made its filing as to

14 whether the 2010 underspend should be credited ba ck to

15 customers or not.  And, the Company's filing says  "we

16 think we ought to credit it back to customers", a nd

17 Mr. Henry thought otherwise.  In the middle of th at

18 discussion as to how to treat 2010, Mr. Cunningha m filed

19 his testimony saying "I think there's also going to be an

20 underspend in 2011 and that should be credited ba ck."

21 And, when the Company had assessed what Mr. Cunni ngham

22 said, and based on all of these discussions, it b elieved

23 it should stay with its original proposal to retu rn or

24 credit back the 2010 underspend, and now adopt
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 1 Mr. Cunningham's proposal that the projected

 2 underspending, it's not an actual underspending y et, but

 3 the projected underspending appeared realistic en ough that

 4 that should be credited back as well.  

 5 And, what I had understood Mr. Henry,

 6 you can confirm this, to say is "I really don't w ant 2010

 7 returned, but I absolutely don't want 2011 return ed."  Is

 8 that a fair summary?

 9 WITNESS HENRY:  That's absolutely fair.

10 And, I think, if the parties agreed this morning to give

11 the residential sector a chance to meet this by

12 October 2012, I'm saying, you know, what's good f or the

13 goose is good for the gander.  But, I will tell y ou, the

14 return on the commercial is way higher than on th e

15 residential.  Both in reductions in costs and red uctions

16 in carbon emissions and creating more jobs in the  state

17 and preserving jobs in the state, and, etcetera, etcetera.

18 You've heard all that before.

19 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Ms. Hatfield,

20 anything further for this witness?

21 MS. HATFIELD:  No thank you.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Then, you're

23 excused.  Thank you, Mr. Henry.

24 WITNESS HENRY:  Thank you very much for
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 1 allowing me to testify, and I apologize that I di dn't

 2 intervene.

 3 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Is there any

 4 objection to striking the identifications and adm itting

 5 the exhibits into evidence?

 6 (No verbal response) 

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Hearing no objection,

 8 they will be admitted into evidence.  Anything we  need to

 9 address before opportunities for closing?

10 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Mr. Speidel, can I ask

11 one question to clarify?  You've reserved a recor d

12 request, Exhibit 4.  And, I wasn't certain if tha t's

13 something that Staff feels is necessary for a

14 determination in this cost of gas proceeding or v aluable

15 for future reconciliation purposes?

16 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes.  I believe what you

17 are referring to would be a small item that we di scussed,

18 the Company gas allowance factor.  And, I heard f rom

19 Mr. Wyatt that that could be submitted as part of  a

20 compliance filing, without a prefiling with Staff  for

21 record request purposes.  It's a single tariff pa ge.

22 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  All right.  So, -- go

23 ahead.

24 MR. SPEIDEL:  That's fine.
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 1 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  So, it goes more

 2 towards -- it's not necessary to have that in pla ce and

 3 evaluated for this cost of gas determination.  It  goes

 4 more towards the next year's reconciliation?

 5 MR. SPEIDEL:  Correct.

 6 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Thank you.

 7 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Then, we'll turn

 8 to closing statements.  I guess I would say Mr. H enry has

 9 had ample opportunity to speak to his issues.  So , let's

10 turn to Ms. Hatfield.

11 MS. HATFIELD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

12 And, thank you to the Commission for your flexibi lity in

13 allowing everyone to speak today.  The OCA has no

14 objection to the Company's overall winter cost of  gas

15 rate.  We thank the Company and the Staff for the ir

16 willingness to keep the residential carryover in the

17 efficiency budget and allow the Company to try to  spend

18 it.  We look forward to the new efficiency staff that Grid

19 is bringing to New Hampshire, and the fact that t hey are

20 refocusing on New Hampshire to try to met the goa ls that

21 they have already committed to.  And, we will cer tainly

22 work with the Company and all of the parties in t he CORE

23 docket to ensure that the funds are spent.  

24 We also support Mr. Henry's proposal
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 1 that at least some portion of the carryover for t he C&I

 2 sector be retained, and perhaps the Commission wo uld

 3 consider some kind of a compromise where either t he whole

 4 2011 underspent funds or a portion of that could be kept

 5 in the budget to try to increase spending for tha t sector.

 6 With respect to the Company's proposal

 7 to begin to recover its rate case expenses, the O CA does

 8 object to that at this time.  And, I would point the

 9 Commission to both the settlement agreement that Ms. Leary

10 read a sentence from, and also to the order in Do cket DG

11 10-017, which was the last rate case of EnergyNor th.  And,

12 I would actually ask that the Commission take

13 administrative notice of the settlement agreement  that was

14 filed on January 10th, 2011 in that case, and als o of the

15 order in that case, which is Order Number 25,202,  on March

16 10th, 2010.  And, I think I misspoke.  I think th e

17 settlement has the wrong date on it.  I'll check on that.

18 As Ms. Leary read, the settlement does

19 include language regarding the rate case expenses .  And,

20 it does say that "The Company shall be authorized  to

21 recover the approved rate case expense beginning with the

22 first peak or off peak filing made after Commissi on

23 approval of such amount."  And, since the Commiss ion has

24 not approved an amount, we believe that it would be more
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 1 appropriate to wait until the off peak filing in the

 2 spring.  Thank you.

 3 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Well, I'd just

 4 say, I don't think we need to, as a formal matter , take

 5 administrative notice of our ruling in that docke t, but

 6 we'll just reflect that you are citing it for aut hority on

 7 how we should act here.  Mr. Speidel.

 8 MR. SPEIDEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Thank

 9 you.  Staff supports the National Grid New Hampsh ire

10 proposed 2011-2012 peak period cost of gas rates as filed.

11 The Commission Audit Staff has reviewed the 2011- 2012 peak

12 period cost of gas reconciliation and found no ex ceptions.

13 The sales forecast for the 2011-2012 peak period cost of

14 gas is consistent with past experience.  The supp ly plan

15 is based on the principles of least cost planning .  And,

16 the direct gas costs are based on actual or hedge d prices

17 and projected pricing that reflect market expecta tions.

18 There will be a reconciliation of forecasted and actual

19 gas costs for the 2011-2012 peak period that will  be filed

20 prior to next winter's cost of gas proceeding.  A nd, any

21 concerns that arise related to the 2011-2012 gas planning

22 dispatch may be raised and addressed in the 2012- 2013 peak

23 period cost of gas.  

24 The Local Delivery Adjustment Charge is
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 1 comprised of a number of surcharges, all of which  have

 2 been established in other proceedings, and the ac tual rate

 3 determined in the winter cost of gas and effectiv e for one

 4 year.  Audit Staff has submitted a draft of its r eview of

 5 the environmental remediation costs that included  one

 6 issue that the Company has addressed, resulting i n an

 7 adjustment that eliminated the proposed environme ntal

 8 remediation surcharge.

 9 Staff recommends approval of the revised

10 LDAC rate and the proposed cost of gas rates.  St aff has

11 reviewed the proposed supplier balancing charges and

12 capacity allocator percentage for this year for

13 reasonableness and accuracy and recommends Commis sion

14 approval for these charges.

15 As for the issue related to the

16 historical company gas allowance factors raised i n this

17 hearing, Staff recommends that the Commission ado pt the

18 suggested remedy of the Company, namely, a retroa ctive

19 adjustment of the factors for the most recent 12- month

20 period.  The Company has not profited from this

21 inadvertent error.  And, Staff will monitor the c ompany

22 gas allowances going forward, as the calculation of the

23 company gas allowance factors will be included in  all peak

24 period cost of gas proceedings and will be clearl y
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 1 identified on the supplier balancing tariff.  Sta ff has

 2 reviewed the current year's company gas allowance  factor

 3 calculations and finds these calculations to be a ccurate.

 4 Staff's commercial and industrial

 5 efficiency fund recommendation is based on the pr inciples

 6 of sound ratemaking, which discourages accumulati on of

 7 year-to-year overcollections for cost of gas rate

 8 components.  For the residential efficiency funds  matter,

 9 Staff accepts the Company's commitment to spend t he

10 overcollected funds over the upcoming year.  Unde r this

11 commitment, the Company will report the remaining

12 overcollection balance as part of the 2012 peak s eason

13 cost of gas filing.  And, overcollection funds re maining

14 as of the 2012 peak cost of gas proceeding must b e

15 refunded to residential customers by means of an LDAC

16 credit.

17 Staff appreciates the efforts of the

18 Company, the Office of the Consumer Advocate in t his

19 matter, and recommends approval of the cost of ga s and

20 LDAC rates subject to the final audits and/or

21 reconciliations mentioned previously.  Thank you.

22 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Thank you.  Mr.

23 Camerino.

24 MR. CAMERINO:  Thank you.  As Attorney
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 1 Speidel's comments indicate, under Mr. Henry's tw o-page

 2 letter, there's actually a regular, plain vanilla  cost of

 3 gas filing that the Commission needs to address.  And, the

 4 Company believes that the cost of gas rates for t he coming

 5 year that have been proposed are just and reasona ble,

 6 based on the costs as outlined and the load forec asts as

 7 set forth in the filing.  The Company's reconcili ation we

 8 believe supports a finding that the dispatch deci sions and

 9 gas supply from the prior year were prudent and s hould be

10 approved.

11 With regard to the three issues that

12 have been identified by the Staff and the OCA in their

13 closings, on rate case expense, obviously, everyb ody had

14 anticipated that by now we would have a ruling on  rate

15 case expense that could be flowed through, and th at's why

16 that proposal has been made here.  And, there sti ll,

17 obviously, are a couple of weeks remaining in thi s month

18 where such an order could be issued.  I'm not sug gesting

19 any kind of conspiracy by the OCA.  But, obviousl y, the

20 matter has been delayed by the significant opposi tion put

21 forward by the OCA, not by some delay by the Comp any.

22 And, so, we think if, for some reason, the Commis sion is

23 unable to rule, that it, on its own, could implem ent the

24 rate on a temporary basis, with, obviously, an ad justment
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 1 in the following year, it's a reconciling charge anyway.

 2 But I understand the Consumer Advocate's point.  And,

 3 obviously, if an order is issued, that would addr ess that.

 4 With regard to the company gas allowance

 5 issue, we appreciate the understanding of the Sta ff and

 6 the OCA as to how we got here.  I think Ms. Leary

 7 explained the complexities of going back and kind  of

 8 making some kind of estimate of what the misalloc ation, if

 9 you will, of costs among the customer classes wou ld have

10 been historically.  The bottom line is that the C ompany

11 didn't over or undercollect its costs.  It has to  do with

12 an allocation, you might call it, a rate design i ssue.

13 And, those are all rates that were submitted, rev iewed,

14 and approved.  And, the reality is, particularly where the

15 Company hasn't collected monies that it wasn't au thorized

16 to collect, we don't believe it would be appropri ate to go

17 back past the reconciliation period and make an

18 adjustment.  You'd also have issues as to "are yo u passing

19 money between people who weren't even customers a t the

20 time it affected?"  And, so, we think the best re solution

21 is what the Company has proposed.  

22 With regard to the multiple energy

23 efficiency issues raised, on the residential ener gy

24 efficiency charge, I really feel compelled to sta rt by
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 1 saying the year isn't over yet.  There is no

 2 underspending.  This is purely a forecast on an, as the

 3 OCA suggested, an accounting basis done by the St aff.

 4 And, we can't disagree with the numbers, but the Company

 5 has indicated it believes the budget will be full y spent

 6 this year.  The settlement, if you will, the oral

 7 settlement agreed to, indicates that, if for some  reason

 8 it isn't all spent, as long as it gets spent in 2 012, that

 9 would be the end of it.  If it isn't, the Company  agrees

10 that it would not be retained for another year.  And, so,

11 we very much support that resolution.  What we wo uldn't

12 want is a reduction, effectively, a reduction in this

13 year's budget, and then the Company has to curtai l its

14 activities on a program that it thinks will be fu lly

15 spent.  So, we think that's an appropriate outcom e.

16 On the C&I program, there are a lot of

17 different ways of looking at it.  But I think you  need to

18 start by getting the concept of a "refund" out of  your

19 mind and realizing it is a "credit", meaning the Company

20 has a budget for next year of $3.5 million.  And,  the

21 question is, "what is the rate that needs to be s et to

22 collect that money for next year?"  And, the Comp any is

23 saying, it's holding money from this year that it  doesn't

24 think will be spent and last year.  And, so, we d on't need
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 1 the full 3.5 million.  We need something less tha n that.

 2 And that's what you should do in determining the rate.  If

 3 you decide that the Company shouldn't apply that credit in

 4 setting the rate, what you're really doing is cha nging the

 5 budget for next year, from 3.5 million to 6 milli on.  And,

 6 the Company is telling you that, looking at what' s

 7 happened in the last two years, and its staffing and what

 8 needs to be done to get there, it cannot, in good

 9 conscience, recommend that you change the budget to $6

10 million.  It has talked to Mr. Henry.  We have th e

11 greatest respect for him.  We are prepared to wor k with

12 him to ensure the success of that program.  But t he

13 Company can't be in a situation of promising some thing

14 that it doesn't know how -- doesn't believe it ca n

15 achieve.  If the Commission decides that with wha t

16 Mr. Henry is committing to, that somehow, you kno w, some

17 of that money can be spent, obviously, that's the

18 Commission's prerogative.  But there is staffing involved

19 at the Company that is committed to these program s.  And,

20 that staffing isn't going to suddenly be doubled.   All

21 you're hearing, it's significant, but it's limite d, is the

22 staffing that the Company has committed to that p rocess

23 will work very aggressively to ensure that the bu dget is

24 spent, and will work with Mr. Henry to do what it  can
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 1 beyond that.

 2 But, to expect the Company to -- the

 3 budget is already double what's being spent in th e current

 4 year.  To double that again, or close to double i t, is a

 5 very large undertaking.  Yes?

 6 CMSR. IGNATIUS:  Mr. Camerino, didn't

 7 Mr. Henry say, in effect, he's willing to line up  free

 8 outreach services, additional people in the field , so that

 9 the Company does not have to expend additional re sources

10 for those, to spend that additional money?

11 MR. CAMERINO:  I heard that.  And, as I

12 indicated, the Company is prepared to, and I want  to use

13 the word "partner" with Mr. Henry, not a collabor ative,

14 because I want to get to the collaborative in a s econd.

15 But, absolutely, the Company would utilize Mr. He nry and

16 the organizations that he's talking to, to try to  spend

17 those funds, if that's what the Commission determ ines.

18 But I think it feels that its reputation is on th e line,

19 its efforts are all that it can commit.  And, obv iously,

20 Mr. Sherry has indicated what the failings were i n the

21 last couple of years, and some of the challenges beyond

22 the Company's own staffing.  That's history.  It wants to

23 make sure it fulfills its commitment for next yea r.  And,

24 you can imagine that it's somewhat sensitive to c oming in
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 1 here next year and saying "we told you we could d o 6, and

 2 now were at 3 or 3 and a half."  

 3 So, I think it's -- to some extent, what

 4 I hear Mr. Henry saying, honestly, is "I'm willin g to put

 5 my reputation on the line.  It's not on the Compa ny's

 6 head, it's on me to deliver."  And, that's a choi ce for

 7 the Commission.

 8 The Company has concerns, again, as it

 9 looks through Mr. Henry's list of projects, as to  whether

10 many of those are realistic, in terms of the timi ng, once

11 you get into the details of the projects, whether  the

12 companies that he's referring to will be willing to

13 undertake the financing and risk associated with it,

14 whether some of those customers can be converted,  given

15 the cost of that.  There are a lot of things that  need to

16 be done to make sure that those projects are real .  And,

17 again, we don't doubt Mr. Henry's sincerity.  But  there's

18 a long way from saying "I have $4 million of proj ects",

19 and actually delivering those and spending the mo ney.  So,

20 that's where the Company's concern is in that reg ard.

21 And, in terms of "these customers don't

22 know about these programs", I'm sure that's true in some

23 cases.  But, in other cases, these are very large

24 organizations.  You know, it may be that the pers on at
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 1 Concord Hospital who Mr. Henry is talking to is n ot the

 2 person that's responsible for the relationship wi th the

 3 Company.  So, the fact that a person who is inter ested in

 4 this at Concord Hospital doesn't know about the p rograms,

 5 doesn't mean that the Company's connection, you k now,

 6 representative at Concord Hospital doesn't know.

 7 Lastly, on the collaborative, I don't

 8 think this process needs another collaborative, i f you're

 9 talking about a formal structure that the Company  has to

10 work through in order to implement its own energy

11 efficiency programs.  Partnering with the people that

12 Mr. Henry is referring to is one thing.  The Comp any has

13 made a real effort in the last few weeks to work closely

14 with Mr. Henry, and would continue to do that, in  terms of

15 staying in contact.  

16 But, having the Commission formally

17 establish a collaborative, that's going to meet a nd then

18 have some kind of authority over this, I don't th ink would

19 be helpful to the process.  It would add another

20 significant layer of bureaucracy that would only take away

21 company time, company expense, Commission time an d

22 attention.  So, we would very much not recommend any kind

23 of collaborative.  We have understood that word, and maybe

24 wrongly so, to be used loosely, not formally.  An d, in
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 1 that regard, I think one of the things that all o f us in

 2 this feel a little bit uncomfortable about, and p uts the

 3 Commission in a difficult position is, this is a cost of

 4 gas docket.  All of the players who normally disc uss these

 5 issues are not even here.  And, so, I don't think  this

 6 would be the time to embark on putting a new stru cture on

 7 energy efficiency programs and how they're implem ented.

 8 Thank you.

 9 CHAIRMAN GETZ:  Okay.  Then, with that,

10 we'll close the hearing and take the matter under

11 advisement.  Thank you, everyone.

12 (Whereupon the hearing ended at 2:00 

13 p.m.) 
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